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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Cyberzone Properties, [nc.

5th - Tth Floors, Vector One Building,
Northgate Cyberzone, Filinvest City,
Alabang, Muntinlupa City

Report on the Aodit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

'¢ have andited the accompanying financial statements of Cyvberzone Properties, Inc. (the Company)
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying finencial stalements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position ol the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards"(PFRSs).

Basiz for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
respansibilities under those standards are further described in the dwditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
af the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Prolcssional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our andit of the finencial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulTicient and sppropriate to provide a

basis for our epinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cur professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. Thess maters were addressed in the context of cur
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereen, and we do nat F'IIT\']I:].'E a
separate opinion on these maners. Our description of how our audit
that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities deseribed in the Auditor s Responsibifivies for the Andit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation 1o these matiers, Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond 1o our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial stalements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for cur audit opinion on the sccompanying
[nancial statements,

Adoption af PFRS 9, Financial instriments

{in January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the final version of PFRS 9, Fimancial Instrumenis. The
Company has adopted the 2010 version of the standard in 201 1. The final version of PFRS 2, which
replaced PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introduces a forward-looking
expected credit loss model to assess impairment on debt financial assels nol measured at fuir value
through profit or loss and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Company adopied
the modified retrospective approach in adepting 'FRS 9.

The Company’s adoption of the expected credit loss (ECL) maodel on its trade receivables are significant
to our audit as it involves the exercise of significant management judgment and estimation. Key areas of
judgment include: determining the method to estimate lifetime ECL; defining defeult; determining
assumptions to be used in the ECL model such as the timing and amount of expecied net recoveries from
defaulted accounts; and incorperating forward-looking information in caleulating ECL.

Refer to Notes 2 and 25 1w the finencial statements for the related disclosure on the application of the ECL
model.

Audit Response

We cbtained an understanding of the approved methodologies and models used for the Company's
different credit exposures and assessed whether these considered the requirements of PFRS 9 to reflect an
unbiased and probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and, the best available forward-
looking information.

We (a) checked the methodology used in applying the simplified approach by evaluating the key inputs,
assumptions, and formulas used; (b) compared the definition of default against historical analysis of
accounts and cradit risk management policies and practices in place, (¢) tested loss given default by
inspecting historical recoveries including the timing, related direct costs, and write-offs; (d) testzd the
expected cash flows from lessee deposits; () evalualed the forward-looking information used for overlay
through statistical test and corroboration using publicly available information,

Further, we checked the data used in the ECL models, such as the historical analysis of defaults, and
recovery data, by reconciling data from source system reports fo the loss allowance analysis'models and
financial reporting systems, To the extent that the loss allowance analysis is based on credit exposures
that have been disaggregated into subsets with similar risk characteristics, we traced the dlsaggregutmn
from source systems to the loss allowance analysis. We also assessed th
are missing or insufficient data.
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(Other Information

Management is responsible for Other Information. Other Information comprises the infermation included
in SEC Form 20 15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the vear
ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the financizl statements and owr auditor’s report thereon.
SEC Form 20 IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Repor for the year
ended December 31, 2018 are expecied 10 be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Chur opinion on the financial statements dees not cover Other Information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cennecticn with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read Other Information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such information is
materially inconsistent with the financizl statements or our knowledge obtained in the sudits, or otherwise

appears to be materially misstaied.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance lor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and [air presentation of the fingncial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparaticn of financial statements that arc frec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

cINOr,

In preparing the financial statemeants, management is responsible for assessing the Company s ability 1o
continue a5 a going concern, disclosing, as applicabls, matters related 1o going concern and using the
going concem basis of accounting, unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Cempany or to
cease oparations, or has no realistic altemmative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
frea from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not & guarantes that an
audit cenducted in accordance with PSAs will always detsct a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statcments.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit,. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material missiatement of the ﬂanﬂiutsmﬁﬂh et e 1o fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o 1 3 = Ak
is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resullng+m
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interng] control.



Beusilding o betier

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of sccounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s usc of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncenainly exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability (o continue az a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
repart to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadegquate, to
maodify our opinion. Our conelusions are based on the awdit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may eause the Company to cease to continue
4% & going concerm.

»  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presantation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Wi also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were ol most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these marters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasongbly be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were condueted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken s
whale. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in a separate
schedule to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not 8 required pant of the basic financial statements, Such informaticn is the
responsibility of the manzagement of Cyberzone Properties, Ine. The information has h::n subjected 1o
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. [n our opi the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to t
whole.

Ay A

LIFEMLP L2
F;:g[ R B | IF :..l't.l-h ML, H‘\-"‘ L4
||.u-||-:|r|r|-l nan 15

u-'u Tl F-dh. L "

REGEIVEB

- AT
[ T ent ca ke T aoueil 1A




Basilding o betier
working warld

o L
The engagement parner on the audit resulting in this independent avditor’s report is Michael C. Sabado.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Michael C. Sabado

Parincr

CPA Certificate Mo, 89336

SEC Accreditation No. 0664-AR-3 (Group A,
March 16, 2017, valid until March 15, 2020

Tax Identification Mo, |60-302-863

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-73-201 §,
February 26, 2018, valid until February 25, 2021

PTR Mo, 7332607, Janvary 3, 2019, Makati City

February 17, 2019
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CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC.
(A Whaolly Owned Subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Inc.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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December 31
2017
(As restated,
2018 see Mote 2)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 16, 24 and 25) PT17,533,656 P1.325,089,537
Receivables (IWotes 5, 24 and 25) 517,039,505 1,062,096 314
Other current assats (Note G) 814,773,211 665,082 514

l'otal Current Assets 2,05%.346,372 3052 268 365
MNoncurrent Assels
Advances to contrectors (Note 7) 280,020,176 201,754,828
Investment properties {Notes & and 24) 13,908,313,251 12,261,776,202
Property and equipment (Note 9) 30,635,268 36,998 990
Intangible and other noncurrent assets (Note 10) 1,995 688,655 2,719.452 Ofd

Total Noncurrent Assets 17, 223,667,350 15219982 104
~ Total Assets ¥19,243,013.722 P18.272,250.469
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and secrued expenses (Wotes 11, 24 and 25) PL029.447816 PB1,641,972,516
Loans payable, current portion (Notes 12, 24 and 25) R39,242,424 594,734,848
Income tax pavable E.503,433 8,134 345
Other current ligbilities (Notes 14, 24 and 25) 164,645,239 56,035,081
Tatal Current Liabilitics 3,041.888.912 2.400.896,790
Moncurrent Liabilities
Loans pavable, net of current portion (Notes 12, 24 and 25) 1,618,371,.212 1.457,613,636
Bonds payable (Notes 13, 24 and 25) 5,948,937 691 5.936,172.114
Retirement lability (Note 17) 1,419,104 902,313
Peferred tax lisbilily - net (Mote 18) 264,842,643 173,262,729
Oiher noncurrent liabilities (Motes 14, 24 and 25) 688,049,551 681,857,288
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 9,521,620,201 10,249, 808.080
Total Liahilities 12,563,509,113  12,650,704,870

Equity

Capital stock (Mote 15) JA26.668
Additional paid-in capital (Note 15) 00D, 666
Appropriated retained camings (Note 15) 00
Uneppropriated retained carnings (Mote 15) 4 18
Remeasurement gain on retircment plan (Note 17) R33N R4

Total Equity llﬂln.ﬁ'l'l'.l 5,621,545 599

Total Liahilities and Equity

P19,283,013,722 B18 272,250,469

Sew aveompanyiag Motes to Fingsncial Sunenmens,



CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC,

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Inc.}

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
'="E|lﬂ- 2017 201&
REVENUES AND INCOME
Renial revenue (Modes 8, 10 and 16) P1,340,797,218  F1,843,651,47% ¥ ,.49043],182
Qithers [Mote 20) 14,561,670 30,367,490 319,304,234
2,355 35K REH LI 0K 069 2009 737436
CO5TS AND EXPENSES
Reental expense (Mo 16) JHLOT2,794 226,931,603 202,268,657
[repreciation and amortization (Motes B, 9, 10 and 20) 274,347,569 123,794 458 156,732,329
Taxes nnd licenses 34, 1 HEET] 18,647 871 10,791 691
Advertiging nnd marketing 14,645,372 4047 245 51,816,704
Service and managemen: faes 11,888,473 7,.520,36% 7,300,000
Manpower cost 8,569,219 12,389 686 TAR3 S04
Pension expense (Mot 17) T 60 208,867 205,704
Proviston for expected credit losscs (Mot 1) - = 122,671
Chihers 4 402,546 7,164,074 3,770,855
629,761,208 501,504,177 440,492 761
FINAMCE INCOME (CHARGES)
Interesy income (Moes 4, 16 and 21) 45, 806,805 26,378,970 2.656,889
Interest and other financing charpes (Motes 12 and 13) (155,115,797) (102,479,056) (101,153,700}
Other financing chargas [493,058) {23.5969) (57 682}
(10%,712,050) (76,124,046} (V8,551,493
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,615, 885630 1352, 390,746 1,4 70,690,682
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Mote [8)
Currenl 114,087,572 71989479 59,174,883
Dy femred 1,505,733 Gt 240 84 63 B30.044
205,603,305 168 910,123 123,013,927
NET INCOME __ L 410.282.328 1,183.480.621 1.347.676,753
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will nat be reclassified 1o profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain on retiremem plag, ned of
the leared incoumne tnx (Note 17) 173,068 - 1,076,233
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P1,410455413  F1 183 480,623  P1 348752 988
Basic/Dluted Farnings Per Share (hote 12) Fl.21 Pl.o2 Ll A

Ser accompanping Nobes ro Flaamsial Stelemials
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CYRERZONE PROPERTIES, INC.

[A& Whally Owned Sshaddary of Filinvest Land, Tne.)

ETATEMEMNTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC.

(A Whally Owned Subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Tnc.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

¥ears Ended Deesmber 31
2007 2006
(A% restaled, see (A3 restalod, see
1018 Mobe 2} Mote 3}
CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income belore income tax B1615.885,63] P 3S2 390,746 #1.470,600,682
Adyustrnents far
Deprecinting and amartiztion (Mot 8, 9
and 1) 311,245 4082 253,264 515 176,741,032
Intenest expense and other financing changes
{Motes 12 and 13) 155,115,797 102470056 IO, 053,70
Provision expected credlit ks {hate 5) - - 1225671
Pension expense (lole 17 T D& 208 EET 205,754
Inferest incame (MNote 21} {45,596 BES) (26,378 979 id,656.884)
Operating income belore changes in oporating assels
gnd lighilnies 3,037, 114,085 1,681,964 306 1,746, 256950
Changes in cpermting rssets and linbililics
[ecrease {increase) in:
Receivables 531,291,200 (78340257 {131,615.563)
{HBES GliFren? et (149, 690.697) (169975 114) {¥23 0k4 244
[nercase (decrease) in:
Acegufils pavable and acereed expenges 531, 711476 014,712 (28, 352.303)
b current liabilithes Bl 158 {197 769.471) 200375579
O¥her nencurrent linbilities 6,192,263 245,222 (RS (102435457}
Het cash g;l:nmﬁnl fram operatioas 1 D8E 2TH. 404 1 0T% 055 o | 460,225 &A1
Imterest received (Mole 16} 5. 342,408 13,9133 2556 280
Income tax paid (113,748, T 520 £4 589.57%
Ket cash provided by oporating activities 1,901,192,415 1018045 459 1,387 262 574
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addisians 1o
Trvessmeent nroperties (e ) (LTSS.516,332)  (1,547,578,003) 2.311,564,61T)
Property and equipment (Note %) (6773, 403) (1,737,585 (5,177,579
Imtangible and other poncurrent Rssets (Mote 10 (264, 916,0285) [TUT 405 595) | A& 300 )
Financiw] assed al FYTOCT (Mele 10) x (9,010,000
Desreass (increise] i sdvances o conlractors (78,265,145) R 121 268,434
Met cash wsed In Investing setivitics (2,199.471,011) (2,134 34 LE71) 12,547 269 438}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Prococds from availmest oft
Loans payeble (Notes 12 and 23) pu 00, 000,000 1,730,000, ()
Bonds payshle (Motes 13 and 25} = 4,000, 000,003 -
Flj-l'ntﬂl'.l afs
Cash dividends {Nota 15) (312 406, 403) (1R3,530,800) (593,347,601}
Loens payable (Motes |13 and 15) (54, TR4 B (3,233 318,040 (335.RaR AR5
Interesl and ransaclion 0518 !M[ﬂ 25} HD].IIISE! |325'Iﬁl'."l]3:-.'| EEJITIJSER}'[
MNet cakh peovided by (used) ia finencing sethvites {1.399,277,185) 2.353,113.128 573,253 6ibd
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
ANMDNCASH EQUIVALENTS (607 S55,581) 1256 410605 (386,722.830)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,325,089,537 23,260 921 £74,092.741
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
P7i7.5% Fl.A25.080.537 FRE, 269931

OF YEAR (MNate 4)

Kier accanipanying Nodes to Finamciad Sraremenis
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CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC,

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Ine.}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Cyberzone Propertics, Inc, (the Company) was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commiszion (SEC) an Jannary 14, 2006, 1z primary purpose is (o acquire by purchase, lease, donale
andfor o own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, morigage, exchange, hold for investment and
deal with real estate of all kinds.

The Company's registered office address is at 5th - Tth Floors, Vector One Building, Morthgate
Cvberzone, Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Inc. (FLI or Parent Company),
a subsidiary of Filinvest Development Corporation (FDC). A.L. Gotianun Inc. (ALG) is the
Company’s ultimate Parent Company. FLI, FDC and ALG were all incorporated in the Philippines.

The financial statements were gpproved and endorsed by the Aodit Comminee on February 27, 2019
and were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BODY) on Febroary 27, 2019,

Summury of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are prepared using the historical eost basis, excopt for financial asset at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCT) that is measwred ab fair value (see Note 10,
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (F), which is also the Company's
presentation and funcltional curmency.

The Mnancial statements of the Company arc prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS), which inchude the availment of relief granted by the Securities and
Exchanpge Commission (3EC) under Memorandum Cireular No. 3-2019 as discussed in the section
below om Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures. PFRSs include Philipping Financial
Reporting Standards, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Interpretations issued by the
Philippine Interpretations Comenitiee (PIC).

Changss in Ascounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting palicies adopied in the preparation of the Company's financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial years, except for the adoption of the following
amendments in PFRS and PAS which became effective beginning January 1, 2018. The namre and
impact of each new standard and amendment are described below:

s Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-bared Payment, Classificanion and Measurement of Skare-based
Poyment Transacfions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the elfects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of  share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
atcounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment

TR A



iransaction changes its ¢lassification from cash-seitled 1o equity-settled. The Company has no
sharc-bascd payment transaction, therefore these amendments do not have any impact on the
Company's financial statements.

PFRS %, Finamncial Desrrumenss

PFRS 9, replaces PAS 39 Financtal Insirinmenes: Recognitian and Meaturement for anmual
perieds beginning on or afier January 1, 2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge
accoumting.

The Company early adopted the first phase of PFRS 9 (2010 version) effective January 1, 2011.
The adoplion of the final version of PFRS 9 did mol have significant impact on the clageification
and measurement of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities.

The adoption of the provisions on impairment has fundamentally changed the Company”s
gccounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing PAS 39°% incurmed bass
epproach with a forward-looking expected credit less (ECL)Y approsch. PFRS 9 requires the
Company to record an allowance for impairment [oszes for all debt financinl assets not held ol fair
vilue through profit or lass (FYTPL). ECLs are based on the difference betweoen the contractual
cash flows due in accordmice with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects (o
reccive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asse’s original effective
inlerest rate, The expecied cash Mows will include cash Nows from lessee’s deposits or other
credit enhancements that are infegral to the confracial ferms,

For trade reccivables, the Company has applied the standard’s simplified approach and hns
calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. Therefore, the Company does not track
changes in credit risk, bul instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs al cach
reporting date, The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
eredit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific 1o the debtors and the
eeononic snviromment.

For cash and cash cquivalents, the Company applics the low credit risk simplification. The
probability of default and loss given defaults are publicly available and considersd to be low
credit risk investments, It is the Company’s policy to measure ECLs on such insiruments on a
12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant increase in eredit risk since
originetion, the allawance will be hassd on the liferime BCL. To estimale the ECL, the Company
uses the rtings published by & reputeble rating agency,

There is no transition adjustment in relation (o the impairment allowanee as of Janwary 1, 2018,

Amendmenms to PFRS 4, Applving PFRS 9, Financial Instrumens with PFRS 4, nsnurance
Confracts

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing FFRS 9, the new financinl
instruments standard before implementing the new insurance contracts standard. The
amendments inroduce two options for entities issuing insurance confracts: a temporary
exemption from applving PFRS 2 and an overlay approach. The temporary exemption is first
applied for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. An entity may elect the
overlay approach when it first applies PFRS 9 and applv that approach retrospectively to financial
assets designated on transition to PFRS 9, The entity restatzs comparative information reflecting
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the overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative information when applving
PFRS 9.

The amendments are not applicable since the Company has no setivities that are predominantly
connected with Insurance or issue insurance confrgts,

FFRS |5, Reverue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS |5 supersedes PAS 18 Revenue and related Interpeetations and it applies, with imited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, PFRS 15 establishes a live-siep
midel to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects 1o be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services o A customer,

PFRS 15 requires enlities W exercize judgement, aking into consideration all the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The
standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obiaining a contract and the
costs directly related to fullilling & condract. In addition, the standard requires extensive

disclosures,

The Company adopted PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the
date of initial application of January 1, 2018, Under the modified retrospeclive method, the
standard can be applicd cither to all contracts at the date of initial applicetion or only 1o contracts
that are not compicted at this date. The Company elected 1o apply the standards to all contracis as
ot January 1, 2018,

The adoption of PFRS 15 did not have signilicant impact on the stalement of financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company since bull of it revenue comes from
leasing operaticns which is covered by different accounting standard.

Set oul below 15 the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from non-lease component:

_ia B 17 2016

Terant Dues {MNobe 20}
Afroen dues B503 50412 FIE3 B0 R F2ELSIRATT
Utitities dues 336,428,561 268,880,387 210,359 047
Cemmon ares charpes JA5562, 769 274,715,878 219,316,157

#1.174,008,142 BG17,450,185 P725223 681

Dizageregated vevenue informeation

The non-lease component of the Company”s revenue arises from aircon dues, utilities dues,
commen arva chasges and vening fees. The Company’s performance cbligations are (o ensure
that common areas are available for general use ofits lenants and Lo provide for uninterrupted
utility services such as water and cleetricity.

Allocation of iransaciion price fo performance obligation

Each of the non-lcase component is considered a sinple performance ebligation, therefore it is not
necessary to allocate the transaction price. These services are capable of being distinet from the
other services and the transaction price for cach service is separately identified in the contract.

The Company assessed itself as agent on its arrangement with tenants for commaon area charges
and wiilities dues (see Note 3),
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Timing of réverue reseprinon
Revenuwe from common area charges are recognized over time since the tenants simultancously

recgives and consumes the services provided by the Company. While revenue from utilities dues
nre racognized ot a point in time, The Company determined that output method best represent the
recognition pittern for revenue from utilities dues since this is recognized based on the actual
consumplion of the wenants,

The Company availed of the deferral of adoption of CUSA charges of PIC 2018-12-H. The
Company is acting as a principal for the provision of air-conditioning services, common usage
garyvice areas services and administration and handfing services. Had the provisions been
adopted, this would have resulted to the gross presentation of the related revenue and the related
expenses and cost. Currently, the related revenue is presented nel of costs and expenses. These
would not resull Lo any adjustment in the retained cornings as of Javeary 1, 2018 and net income

in 2018,

PIC Q&A on Advances to Contractons

The Company adopted PIC Q& A 2018-15, PAS |- Clagificarion of Advancer o Cortraciors In
the Noture of Frepayments; Current vs, Non-gurrent starting January 1, 2018, The impact of
adoption is npplied retrospectively which resulied to the following reclassilications in the
statement of Minancial position as at Januvary 1, 2018;

MNongwrnent
Reference Cicrrent Assel Assel
Advanoes e contresions and suppliers i) (201,752 B28) 201,754,008

{a} Advances 1o contractars and suppliers previowsly presented under curreni assets, represenling
prepayments for the construction of investment property was reclassified to noncurnent asset.
Before the adoption of PIC Q&A 2018-135, the classification of the Company is based the
timing of application of these advances against billings and timing of delivery of goods and
services. This interpretation aims to classify the prepayment based on the actual realization
of such advances based on the determined usape/realization of the asset o which it is
intended for (e.g., real estate inventory, investment property, property plant and equipment;
see MNotes 11 and 15)

The adoption of PIC Q&A also resulted to incrense in cash fiows provided by operating activities
with a matching decrease in cash Mows used in investing activities amounting P220.9 million and
R151.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 201 6, respectivaly,

Amendments 1o PAS 28, fivesrmenis in Associones amd Joint Venfures, Megsuring an Associare
or Joimt Fenture at Fair Value (Part of Ameual Impravements fo FERS: 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

e amendments clarify that an entiry that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investmant basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through pralit or loss. They elso clarify
that if an entity that is not itsell an investment entity has &n interest tn an assoctate or joint
venlure that is an investment entity, the cotity mav, when applying the equity method, elect 1o
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint ventures to
the investmen? enlily associate’s or joinl venlure s interssts in subsidiaries, This clection 15 made
separately for cach investment entity associate or jaint venture, at the later of the date on which
{a) the investmant entity nssocials or joint venture is inftially recognized; (b) the asseciate or jout
venture becomes an investment entity; and {c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first

becomes a parent. Retrospective application is required.
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The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company”s financial statemenis.
Amendments to PAS 40, favestmenr Property, Tronsfers of fmvestment Property

The amendments clasify when an cntity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state thut a
change in use ccours when the property meets, or ccases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. Hetrospective application
of the amendments is not required and is only permitted if this is possible without the use of
hindsight.

Since the Companv's current practice is in ling with the amendment izsued, the Company does
not expect this amemdment 10 have a material impact in the fnancial statcmaonts,

Philippine Inerpretation IFRIC-22, Fareign Ciorrency Tramsactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretaiion clarifics that, in determining the spet exchanpe rate to use on initinl recognition
of the relaled assel, expense or income (or parl of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary assct
or non-monstary liability relating 1o advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-monstary liahility arising
from the advance consideration, If there are multiple payments or rezcipts in advance, then the
entity must determine the dato of the transaction for cach payment or receipt of advance
consideration. Retrospective application of this interpretation is nol reguired.

Since the Company s current practice is in line with this interpretation, the Company does not
expet this unerpretation 1o have an impact in the financial statements.

1

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations when these become effective.
Except as otharwize stated, the Company does net expect the adoption of these standards to have a

significant impact on the fnancial statcments.

Effective heginning on or gffer January {, 2012

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepmment Fearures with Negarive Compensation

Under PFES 9, a deb instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair valee through other
comprehensive income, provided thal the contractual cash flows are *solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding” (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held
within the appropriate business mode! for that classification. The amendments to PFRS @ clarify
that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or cincumstance that causes
the early termination of the contract and ircspective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively and are effective from January 1, 2019, with carlier application permitted.
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PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognilion, measurement, presentation and disclosurs of
lenses and requires lessees to account for all lcascs under a single on-balance sheet model similar
ta the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two
recognifion exemptions for lessess = leases of "low-value” assels {e.p., personal compulers) and
short-term beases (e, lazses with a lenze term of 12 months or less). At the commensement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease paymenis (e, the lzase lability) and
an assct representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use assel), Lessees will be required (o separniely recognize the interest expense on the leasc
liaksility and the deprecialion expense on the righl-of-use assel

Lessecs will be also required o remeasure the lease lighility upon the occurrence of cerlnin events
{&.z., a change in the leass term, a chanpe in future lease payvments resaliing from a change in an
index or rule used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognize the amoum
of the remeasurement of the lease liahility as an adjustment to the right-of-use assel.

Lessor sceounting under PERS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
FAS |7, Lessors will continue to classify all lcases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases; operating and finance leases.

PFRS 16 also reguires lessees and lessors 10 meke more extensive disclosures than under PAS 7.
A lessee con chouse o apply the stundard using either & [ull rebrospective or & medilied

retrospective approach,
The Company is currendly assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16,

Amendmenes to PAS 19, Erpdovee Renefits, Plan Amendment, Curigilment or Setrlement

The amendments to PAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, cortailment or
settlement occurs during & reporting period, The amendmemns specify that when 2 plan
amendment, curtailment or seftlement occurs during the annual reporting period, oan entity is
recuired 1o

s Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailmsent or setthement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remensure the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the henelils offered under the plan and the plan assets afller
that event; and,

s  Determine net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or sethement using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered
under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used 1o remeasure
that nat deflined benefit liabdlaty {asser),

The amendmenis also clarify that an entify first determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset cetling. This amount is recognized in
profit or loss. An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling afier the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement. Any change in that effeet, excluding amounts included in the net
interast, 1s recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or scttlements occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period that beging on or after Junuary 1, 2019, with carly
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application permitted. These amendments will apply only 1o any fture plan amendments,
curtailments, or settiements of the Company.

Amendments 1o PAS 28, Lawp-rerm lnterests in Azsociares and Jaing Pentures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies PFRS 9 to long-term interests in on agsociate or
joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the et
imvestment in the associnte ar joint venturs (lonp-term interests). This elarification is relevant
becausz il implies that the expected credit foss model in PFRS 9 applies o such long-lerm
IMEerests.

The amendments also elarified that, in applying PFRES 9, an entity does nol take sccount of any
losses of the nagociate of joint venhire, or any imphinnent less2s on the net Investmeant,
recognized as adjustments 10 the net investment in the associale or joind venture that arise from
applving PAS 28, frvesrmienie iy A mocfafes and Joint Femtures.

The amendrments should be applied retrospectively and are effeetive from JTanuary 1, 2019, with
early application permitted. Since the Company does not have such long-term interests in its
associate and joint venturs, the amendments will not have an impact on its financial statements.

Fhilippine Interpretation [FRIC 23, Uncertainny over Income Tar Treatments

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax tregtments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12, fcome Tares, and does not apply 1o taxes or
levies oulside the scope of PAS 12, nor docs if specifically include requircments relating o
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.

The interpretation specifically addresses the following:

= Whether an enlily considers unconzin tax ncstmenis separstely

& The assumplions an entity mukes about the examination of 1ax treatments by waxation
authorities

»  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
crodits and tax rates

#  How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertzin tax treatment separately or together
with ome or more elther uncerain tax treatments, The approach that betler predicts the resaohetion
of the uncertainty should be followed.

This imerpretation is nol relevant (o the Company because there is no unceniainty involved in the
tax treatments made by manapement in conncetion with the calculation of current and deforred
taxes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

Amnnal Improvements 201 5-2017 Cyele

Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS L], Joinr drrangemenss, Previously
Held Inrerest in @ Joinr Onerarion

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtaing control of a business that is a joint operation,
it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring
previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing
sn, the acquirer remensures its entire previously held interest in the joint operation.
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A party that participates in, bat does ot have joint control of, a joint eperaticn might obtain joint
control of the joint opemtion in which the activity of the joint epemtion conslitutes a business a5
defimed in PFRS 3. The amendments clanfy that the previously held inferests in that joim
operalion are nol remeasured,

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acguisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annval reporting peried beginning oo or after

January 1, 2019 and to transactions in which il oblaing joinl control on or aller the beginning of
the first annual reporting peried beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with early application
permimed. Thess amendments ara currently not applicable to the Company but may apply 1o
future transactions.

Amendments to PAS |2, Income Tax Conseguences of Payments on Financial Instruments

Classiffed as Equity
The amendments clarify that the income tax censequences of dividends are linked more directly

o past transactions or events that gencrated distributable profits than to distributions to owners.
‘Therefore, an entity recognizes the income lax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
compreliensive income or eguity according 1o where the entity originally recognized those past
fransactions or evenis,

An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application is permitted. When an entity [irst applies those amendments, it
applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of
the earlivst comparative period.

Amendments 1o PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Cosis Efipible for Capltalzation

The amendments clarify thar an entity treats as part of peneral borrowings any bormowing
originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary 1o
prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to barmowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting periosd in which the enlity first applies those amendments. An entity applics
thosc amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2019, with carly
application permittad.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this amendment.

Effective beginning on or affer January I, 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definirion of @ Buxiness

The amendments to PFRS 3 clasily the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant's ability to replace missing elements, and namow the
definition of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to nssess whether an acquired process
is substantive and add illusirative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is
introduced which permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assels iz not a business,

An entity npplies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
alter Januarv 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted,

These amendments will apply on furure business combinations of the Company.
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Amendments 10 PAS |, Presentation of Financial Starements, and PAS 8, dccsunring Policiés,
Changes in Accounting Exttmates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used naross
FFR5s and other proncuncements. They are infended o improve the understanding of the
exisling requirements rather than o significantly impeet an entity’'s materiality judgments.

Am entity applies those amendments prospectively for anneal reporting periods beginning on o
after January 1, 2020, with caclicr application permified,

Effeciive beginming on or gfiter Jonuary !, 2021

PERS 17, fnsurgnee Cowtracts

PFRE 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recoprition and measyrement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PERS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts {i.e., life, non-lite, direct insurnnce and re-insurance), regardiess of the type of
entities that issue them, as well 25 to cerlain guarantess and financial instruments with
discretionary participation fearures. A few scope exceplions will apply.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after Janeary 1, 2021, with
comparative Ngures required. Barly application is permitbed.

Diferred Effective Date

Amendments o PFRS 10, Convolidied Finoncial Siatements and PAS 28, Safe or Contribubion
of Axsers between an frvestor and fts Associate or Joint Venture

The amendmenis address the conllict betwesn PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of & swhsidiary that is zobd or contributed to an associate or joint venture, The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a wransfer to an associate or joint
viituee invalves a business a3 defined i PFRS 3, Bierfners Comtbinarions,

Any gain or loss resuiting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a
husingss, however, s recopnized only 1o the extent of unrelated investors® interesls in the
AsE0ciale or joint veniure,

Significam Azcouniing Polizics
. N  Classificats

The Company presents assets and liabilitizs in statement of flingncial position based oa
curraptnoncurrent lassification. An asser i current when:

[

expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cvele,

held primarily for the parpoze of rading;

expecied to be realized within twelve (12) months aller the reporting period; or

cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle & liability for at
least parelve [12) monthse after the reporting pariod.

All other azsets are clpssified as noncurrent.
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A liability is current when:

it i5 expected 1o be settled i normal operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

it is dus to be sertled within twelve (12) months after the reporting period, or

there is ne unconditional rght to defer the sattlement of the lability for at least twelve (12)
months after the reporting periad.

o o

The Company ¢lassifics all other habililies as noncwrment.

Delerred tax assels and lizbilities are classified a5 noncurrent assets and linhilities, respectively.

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants of the measurément date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction (o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

# [nthe principal market for the aseer or linbility, or
# In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabiliy.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a lighility is measurad using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the assel or labifity, sssuming thal markst participants st in their economic best interest.

Fhe Company vses valvation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obsarvable inputs
and minimizing the use of unphservable inputs,

All assets and lisbilities for which {air value is messured or diselosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant 1o the fair value measurement as & whaole:

o Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical nssets or liabilities

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observahle

s Lewvel 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sipnificant 1o the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Fior assets and habilibes that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring hasis, the
Company determines whether translers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whale) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets ond liabilities nre recognized in the statement of financinl position when, and only
when, the Company becomes a party (o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchasss or
sabes of financial assets thae require delivery or assets within the time frame established by regulation
or conventiosn in the markelplace are recopnised on the fmade date.
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Eecognition and Measurement of Financial Instrumenis
A financial instrument is amy contract that gives rise to 2 financial agset of one entity and a financizl
linkility or equity instrument of another entity.

Finamcial Azsels

Intiticd recogmition and measurement

Financial asszts are classified, at initial recognition, as either subsequently measured at amortized
cosl, al FVYTOC], or ot FYTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractoal
cosh low characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. The Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair valwe plos, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
ransaction costs,

In order for & financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCL, it needs to
give rise o cash Nows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ an the principal amount
outstanding. This asscssment is referred to as the *solely payments of principal and interest test’ and
s performed a1 an instrument level.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order (o generale cash Nows. The business model determines whether cash flows will resubt
from collecting contractual cash fows, selling the financial asssts, or bath.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time [rame sstablished by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the rrade date,
1.2, the datc that the Company commils o purchase or s¢ll the asscl,

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's [nancial assels comprise of Anancial assels at
amartized cost and financial assets at FYTOCT,

Subsegwent measureRent
For purpnses of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

»  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

o Financial assers at fair valee through GCL with recveling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
fmstruments )

»  Financial assets designated at fiir value through OCT with no regyeling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equily Insinuments)

#  Financial ass2is ol Gair valug through profit or loss

Financiel assets at armortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if bath of the fellowing conditions are met:

#  the asset is held within the Company's business model whose objective is to hold asseds in erder
io collect contraciual cash flows; and,

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise ob specified dates to cash flows that are solely
pavmenis of principal and interest on the principal amoumnt outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized costs are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interesi method less any impairment in value, with the inmerest calcwlared recognized as interest
income in the statement of comprehensive income.
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The Company classified cash and cash equivalents, receivables and deposits (included under
ather noncurment assets) as financial assets at amortized cost (see Note 25).

Finpneial assety at FFTOCT {equily instruments)

At initial recognition, the Company can make an imevocable clection (on an instrumsnt-by-
instrument basis) to designirle equity investments as st FVTOC] when they meet the definition of
equity under PAS 32, Finaneigld Jnstrumenis: Presentation and are not held for treding.

Crains and losses ansing [rom changess i fair value are recognized in other comprehengive income
and sccumulated in “Revaluntion reserve on financial assets gt FYTOCT in the statement of
financial position. Whers the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in “Revaluation reserve on financial assets at FY TOCT is nol reclassilied o profit or loss, bt is
reclassified to Retnmned carnings.

Included under this category are the Company's investments in ungquoted shares of stocks
(zes Mote 10

Drividends eamed on hobding thess equity instruments are recognized in the statement of income
when the Compuny’s right Lo receive the dividends is established in accordance with PFRS 15,
unless the dividends clearly represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment,

Reclassification of financial assets
The Company can reclassifv financial assets if the objective of its business model for mannping those
financial assels changes, The Company 1s reguired 1o reclassify the [ollowing fnancial assets:

¢ from amortized cost 1o FYTPL if the objective of the business model changes so that the
amortized cost criteria are no longer met; and,

# from FVTPL to amortized cost if the objective of the business model changes 5o that the
amorlized cost criteria star to be mezt and the instrument’'s contructunl cush ows meed the
amortized cost criteria,

Reclassification of Nnancial msels designated as al FVTPL at initial recognition 1% not permilted,

A change in the ebjective of the Company's business model must be effected belore the
reclassification date. The reclussification date is the beginming of the next reporting period following
the chanpe in the business modeal.

Firerneiol (rabilites

Inidial recogninian gad measurement

Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, &< financial labilities a1 FYTPL, loans and

borrowings, pavables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an efzctive hedge, as

appropriae.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially a1 fair value and, in the ease of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable trmamsaction costs,

As of December 31, 2008 nnd 2017, loans and borrewings consist primarily of accounts payable and

acerneed expenses, loans paveble, bonds payable and due 1o reluted parties (see Notes 11, 12, 13
and 16},

O



Subsequent measuremand

Loans and borrowings {Nnancial Gahilities ot amortized cos1) is the category most relevant 1o the
Company. Aler initial recognition. inlesest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at pmortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
linbilities are derecopnized as well as through the EIR amertization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an
integral pan of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included os finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Impaireent of Financial Assets (Cffecrive Janpary |, 2018)

The Company recognizes an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based an the difference betwesn the contraciual cash flows dus in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the eriginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
fows from the lessee"s deposit held or other credit enhancements that are integral 1o the contractual
terms.

The Company applies a simplifisd approach in caleulating ECLs Tor financial ascets al amortized
costs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in eredit sk, bur instead recopnizes n loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting dale. The Company has established a provision
malrix for trade reccivables that is based on its kistorical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial nsset in defoult when contracteal payvments are 60 days past due,
However, in cenain cases, the Company may alse consider o financial assel to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstandinp
contractual amounts in fisll before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company.
A Nnancial assel s written ofl when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows,

Impairmeent of Financial Assets (Prior to Janoary 1, 2018}
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets Carried af Amortized Cost
If thers is ohiective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables camed at amortized

cost has been incurred, the amount of the boss is measured as the difference batween the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the flinancial asset's original EIR (i.e. the EIR compured
al initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either dirsctly or through
use of an allowance account, The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the statemeant of
comprehemsive ncome.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant, If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the ass=t is included in
the Company financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Asscts that are individually
msscssed for impairment and for which an impairment 1055 15 ar continues to be recognized are not
included in & eollective assessment of impaimment.

IT, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impatrment loss decreases and the decrease can be

A
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related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment lnss is reversed. G

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income, to the extent that the carryving value of the assel docs not exceed its amortized cost st the
reversal dats.

Fingncfal .d.'r By
A financial asset is derecognized when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
o the Company retains the right 1o receive cash flows from the assel, but has assumed an obligation
1o pity them in full withoat material delay 1o a third party under o *pass-through” armangement; or,
o the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantinlly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)) has neither transferred nor
relained substantially all risks and rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the asset

Where the Company has translerred its rights (o receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of an asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continwing involvement that takes the form ol 2 guaraniee over the iransferred asset is measured al
the lower of the original camying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Compuny could be required 1o repay.

Financial Lishilities
A financial linbility is derecognized when the obligation under the liability cxpires, is discharged or
cancelled.

Where an existing financial labiliry is replnced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the lerms of an existing liability are substantially modilisd, such an exchange or
modificarion is reated as a derccopnition of the original labiliny and te recognition of & new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income,

Firancial assels and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforcenble right to offset the recognized amounts and the
Company intends 1o either ssitle on a net basis, or (o realize the asset and settle the liahility
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, where the related
asgets and labilities are presented at gross in the statement of financial pasition.

Advances to contactors

Advances 1o contractors pertain lo down-payments made by the Company which are applied against
future billings for development and construction contracts. Advances to be applicd as payment for
construction of assets to be classifisd inventories is classified as current and advances to b applied as
property and eguipment or investment properties are presented as noncurrent assets.

Prepaid i

Prepaid commission are incremental costs that are directly attributable to negotiating and armanging a
lease, These are initially recognized at cost and are amortized over the related lease term.
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Malue-added Tax (VAT
Revonucs, cxpenscs, asscts and liabilitics arc recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods andfor services (output VAT) exceads VAT passed on from
purchascs of goods or services (input VATY), the excess is recognized as pavable in the statements of
tinencial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) excoods
VAT from sales of goods andfor services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the
statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

The net amount of VAT recoverable and payable from the taxation authority is included as part of
“Oither current asszts™ and “Accounts payable and acorued expenscs”, respoctively in the statement of
financial pesition,

Investenent Properties

Investment properties are measured initially 6t cost, including transaction costs. The carmmying amount
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment propery at the ime that cost is incumed
il the recognition crileria are met and excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment

property.

Investmeont propertics include buildings that arc held to cam renlals and are nod oecupied by the
Company. Investment properties, except for land, are camried at cost less aceumulated deprecistion
and aceumulated impairment losses, i any. Land is corried o cost less secumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Investment properties built on land rented from the Parent Company or a third party are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives or l2ase 1erm, whichever i shorier. Depreciation of investrment
properties are compited using the straight-lne method over the estimaled uselul life of 40-530 years
for the building and 15 vears for squipment.

Buildings in-progress are camried &t cost (ingluding bormowing costs) and transfermed to the reluted
invesiment property account when the construction and related activities (o prepare the property for
its intended use are complate.

Investmient propertics are derecognized when cither they have been disposed of or when the
investment propeny is permanently withdravan from use and no fature econnmic benefil is expected

frem its disposal. Any gaing or Josses on the retirement or dispesal of an investment property e
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the year ol retirement or disposal,

Transfers are made o investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of
owner-poeupation, commencement of an operating lease 1o another party or ending of constrection or
development. Transfors are made from investment property when there is 2 change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-accupation or commencement of development with n view o sell.

Transfers between investment property and cwner-occupicd property do not change the camying
amouent of the property transferred and do not change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposecs.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of land improvements and fumniture and fixtures, The Company's
property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if

any.
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The mitial cost of propeny and equipment consists of its purchase price, including impornt dutics,
taxes and any directly attribatable costs of bringing the zsset to s working condition and lecation for
its infended use.

Expenditures incurred afier the assets have been pul into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
are normatlly charged o operations in the pertod in which the costs are mcurred.  In stluations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulied in an inerease in the futane
economic benelils expected 10 be obiained [rom the e of an flem of propery and aguipment bevond
its origimally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost

of preperty and squipment,

Deprociation of property and cquipment is computed vsing the straight=line method over the
estimated useful lives (EUL) of these zssets as follows:

Y ears
Langd improvements &
Furniture and fxtures J=5

The wseful lives and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that the period and method
of dopreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of cconomic benefits from items of property
and equipment.

When asseis ane sold or retived, their cost end accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their dispesal s included in the statement of
comprehensive imcome,

Intangible Asset

Intangible azsen includes build, transfer and operate (BTO) rightz. Intangible assats acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at costs, The cost of intangible assels acquired ina
husiness combination or contracted arrangements is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost, less any accumulated amortization
and sny sccumulated impairment losses.

The ugeful lives of intangible assets arc assessed to be cither finite or indefinite,

BT rights are amoretized over the cconomic wseiful life (ic., 25 vears) and assessed for impairment
whenzver there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amoriization period
and the amarication method Tor an intangible asset with 3 finite useful life are reviewed &t [oast at
each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic henefits embodisd in the assel is accounted for by changing the amorikation period
or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in sccounting estimates, The amortization expense
on intangible azsats with finite lives is recognized in the stnlement af comprehensive income.

Gains or losses arising from derecopgnition of intangible asset are mensured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amaount of the asset and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derccognized.

Prepaid District Cooling System (DCS) conmection chirges

Prepaid DCS connection charges are initially recognized at cost and are subsequently amartized over
the term of the supply period (i.e., 20 years) commencing on the date when the related building is
connected to the DCS lacility. Portion relsted to the connection of succeeding buildings are amortized

over the remaining years of the supply peried.
T OVOAR
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Orther Asseis

Otther assets are recognized in the statement of financial position when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the assets have cost or value that can be measured
reliably. These azsets are regularly svaluated for any impairment in value. Amounts expectad o be
realized within 12 months from end of reporting period is classified as current; otherwise, they are
presented 25 NONCUITENT BESETS.

I : FNonfi il A
The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an assel miy be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs 1o s2il and its value in use and is
determined for an individual naser, unless the nszer does mon penernte cash inflows that are lnrgely
independent of those from oiher assels ol the Company, Where the carryving amount of an asset
excoads its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessig value i use, the estimated future cash Nows wre discounted o their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of meney and the risks specific o the assel. Impainment losses are recoenized i the statement of
comprehensive income.

Intangible assets with finite lives (e, BTO rights) are amortized over the economic useful lile

{Le., 25 years) and asscssed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets
may be impaired. The amorization peried and the amomization method for an intangible asset with &
finite useful Life are reviewed of least at each foancial yearad, Chunges in the cxpected uselul life
or the expected patlern of consumption of fulure economic bensfits embodied in the asset is
accoumed for by changing the amortization period er method, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in pecouniing estimates. The amortization expense on infangible assets with finite lives iz recognized
in Uee statzment of comprehensive income.

A previcusly recognized impairment loss 15 reversed only if there has been a change in (he ¢stimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however, not 1o an amount higher than the
carrying amaunt that would have baen detenmined (net of any depreciation) had ne impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to current

gperations,

Equity

Capirad stock and additfong pald-in copltal

The Company records commeon stock at par value and additional paid-in capital for the amount in
excess of the total contributions received over the aggregate par value of the equity shares.

Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as &
deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

Rermined aarnings

Retained eamings represent accumulated sarnings of the Company. less dividends declared and any
adjustment arising from application of new accounting standards or changes in accounting policies
applied retroactively. Retained earnings are restricted for any appropriation as approved by the
Company's BOD.

Dividends on common shases ane deducted from upsppropriated retained camings when declared and
approved by the BOD of the Company. Dividends payable are recorded as liability until paid.
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Dividends for the vear that are declared and spproved affer reporting date, if any, are dealt with as an
evienil after reporting date and disclosed accordingly.

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income applicable to common stock by the weighred averge
number of common shares omstanding, after giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock
splitz or reverse stock splits during the period.

Diluled EPS is compuited by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
oulstanding during the penod, afler giving retroactive effect for any stock dividends, stock splits or
reverse stock splits during the period, and adjusted for the offect of dilutive options.

Where the effect of the assumed conversion of the preferred shares and the exercise of all outstanding
options have anti-dilutive effect, basic and diluted EPS are stated at the same amount.

e R e
The Company is in the business of leasing its investment property portfolio. The Company’s non-
lease perfonnance obligations includs common ares manggemeant and administration of utility

pETVECes,

Significans accounring palicy before adoption of PFRS 13
Revenue is recognizzd 1o the exient that it is probable thal the economic benefits will Mow to the
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably.

Significent accounting policy on adoption of FERS [5

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when contrel of the goads or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchangs for those poods or services. The Company assesses its revenue
wrrangzinent against specific critena i order to determine i1 i 15 acting as a pringipal or an agenl.

Remtal Income

Rental income arising from investment properties are recogmized in the statement of comprehensive
income either on a straight-line basis over the lease term or hased on & certain percentage of the gross
revenue of the lenants, &s provided under the terms of the lease contract. Leases under contingent
rcnis are recognized as income in the period in which they are camed.

Tenant Dues

Terant duss are recognized when the related services are rendered, The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the provisioning of water,
and ekectricity in its office leasing activities, wherein it is acting as agent. Income from common area
and air conditioning dues s compuled based on a fixed rate per sgquare meter of the leasable area
occupied by the wenant.

Inrerest income
Irterest is recopmnized as il mocriss laking inte accounl the effestive vield on the underlying assel.

hher moome
Other income s recognized when the relared services have been rendered and the right to receive

payment is established.

Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)

OC] are items of income and expense that are nol recognizzd i the profil o loss Tor the vear in
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accordance with PERS,

Costs and Expense Recognilion

These include the Company’s costs incurred in leasing properties and expenses related o
administering its business. These are generally recognized as incurred and measured at the amount
paid or payable.

Retirement Costs

Thee net defined benefi lability or asser is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for
any «fecl of limiting a net delined benelt assel to the asser ceiling. The assst ceiling is the present
vilue of any economic benafis available in the fonn of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contribulians to the plan,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actuarially determined using the
prijected unit credit method.

Defined henefit costs comprise the following,

*  Service cost

»  Net interest on the net defined benefit linbility or asset
»  Remeasurements of net defined benefit lizbility or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gaing or losses on nonroutine
sertlements are recognized as axpense in the statement of comprehensive income. Past service costs
are recognized when plan amendment or curlaiiment ocours.

Met interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
delined beneni hability or assel that arses from the passage of Ume which is determinad by applying
the discount raz bazed on povernment bands 1o the net dafined benefit Hability or aszer. Met inferest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in the statement of
comprehensive mcome.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, and any change in the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding net interest on defined banefit liability) are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income in the perind in which they ariss. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or less in subsequent periods, All remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive incoms
pccount “Remeasurement gain on retirement plan®, net of tax and are not reclassified to another
cquity mecount in subsequent periods,

Termination berefit

Termination benefits are employvee bensfits provided in exchange for the termination of an
emplovee"s employmeant as a mesull of either an enlily s decision o lerminate an employes's
employment hefore the nommal retirement date or an employes’s decizion 10 accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

A linbility and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefiis and when the entity recopnizes related nestructuring costs,
Initial recognition and subsequent changes W lermination benefils are measured in accordance with
the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-emplevment benefits, shon-term emplovee benefits,
or other long-term employee henefits,
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Employee leave entiticment

Emplowves entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly within twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting date is recopgnized for services rendered by emplovees up to Lhe
end of the reporting date.

Borrowing Cosls

Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of & qualilving asset. Qualifying assets are nssets that necessarily take a substantial period
of tima 1o get ready for its intended use or sale. Interest and other financing costs incurred during the
consiruction period on borrowings used to finance property development are capitalized as part of
construction costs. Capitalization of bormowing costs commences when the setivities to prepare the
asget are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Capitalization of
borrowing costs ceases when subsizntially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended sale or use are completed. If the carrving amount of the assel exceeds ils recovernble
amount, gn impairment loss is recordad,

All other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred,

[nzome Taxes

Curreni fax

Current tnx assets and liabilities for the current and prier perinds are messured at the amount expected
1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax lews used to compute

the amount are those that are cnacted or substantively enacied at the report date.

Deferred pax
Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the report date betwesn the tax bases of assets

und lisbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reparting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, exceprt; (a) where
deferred income tax liability ariscs from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable prefit or loss; and (b} in respect of taxable lemporary differences
associnted with investments in subsidiarics, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
uming ol the reversal of the temporary differences can be contralled and it is probable thot the
remporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future.

Dreferred tax linbilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluation. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused tax credits from excess minimum ¢orparate income tax (MCIT) and net operating
loss carryover (NQLCOY, 1o the extent that it is probable tht texable profit will be available agninst
which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of vnused MCIT and NOLCO
can be used. The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed @1 each report date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficicnt taxable profit will bé available wo allow all or
part of the deferred ax asset to be otilized,

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sulTicient future taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset 1o be recovered,
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Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured &t the tax rates that are applicable 1o the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is scttled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacied a1 the report date.

Deferred tax relaling to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is also
recogrized in other compreleasive incume and not in the statement of comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lizhilities are offsst, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets agninst current tax liabilitics and the delerred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation autharity,

Opeoing [egses

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or containg a lease 15 based on the substunee of the
arrangement af the inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of & specific asset or assets or the arrnngement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the [ollowing applies:

() Thers is a change in contrectual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b} A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or exiension
was initially included in the lease term;

() There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specilied nzset;
I.'""I

{d} There is a substantial change to the agsel,

Where o reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (@) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenaria (h),

Company as Lesvor
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income on operating leases is recognized on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease
are ndded to the earmying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease lesm on the same
bases as rental income.

Clomtpany ar Lessee
Operating lease payments are recognized & an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term,
except lor contingent rental payments which are expensed when they arise.

Forcign Currency-denominated Transactions and Trunsiation

Foreign currency-denominated transactions are recorded using the prevailing exchange rates at the
time of the transaction, Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated
using the prevailing exchange rates at the report date. Exchange gains or losses resulting from
foreign currency Lransactions and translation are included in the statement of comprehensive inceme
for the vear.

Segment Reporting
The Company”s operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the

products and services provided. The Company has determinsd tha it is oparating s one operating
segment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (s2e Note 23).
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Brovieh
A provision is recognized only when the following conditions are present: {a) the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as o result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an cutflow
of resources embodving economic benelits will be required to settle tha ohligation; and (&) a reliable
estimate can be made on the amount of the obligation. If the cffect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows ar a pre-tax rate
that reflects current assessment of the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks spesific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of lime is
recagnized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed al each report date and adjusted to reflect the
current hesr extimnne,

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
probability of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is
nod recognized i the financial statements but are diselosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events afier the Report Date

Post venr-end events up 1o the date of the anditor's report that provide additional information about
the Company 's position at the reporting date (adjusting cvents) are reflected in the financial
statements. Any year-end events that are not adjusting event is disclosed in the rotes to the financial
statements when material,

Significant Aceounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affeet the amounts reporied in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Fulure events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in amiving mt
those estimates 10 change. The effects of any changes in estimates will be refleeted in the financial
slalements as they become reasonably detérminable. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
evenls thal are believed (o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Companys accounting policies, management has made the following

Judgments, apart from those invelving ¢stimations, which have the most significani effect on the
ameunts recognized in the financial siatements,

Principal versus agent considerations

The contract {or the office spaces and retails spaces leased out by the Company to its tenants includes
the right to charge for the clectricily usage, water usage, alr conditioning charges and Common Usage
Service Areas (CUSA) like maintenance, janitorial and socurity services,

For the electricity and water usage, the Company determined that it is acting as en agent because the
promise of the Company 1o the tenants is to arrange for the electricity and water supply o be
provided by a utility company. The utility company, and not the real estate developer, is primary
respansihle fior the provitioning of the utilitics while the Company, administers the leased spaces and
coordinates with the wtility companies to eansure that terants have access (o thoese utilities. The
Company docs not have the discretion on the pricing of the services provided since the price is based
on the actual rate charged by the utility providers.
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For the provision of air conditioning and services in the CUSA, the Company acts as a principal. This
is because it is the Company who retains the right 1o direct the service provider of CUSA as it
chooses and the party responsible to provide proper ventilation and air conditioning Lo the leased
premises. The right 1o the services mentioned never mransfers to the tenant and the Company has the
diseretion on how to price the CUSA and air conditioning charges,

O rating fease commilments = Company as fessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio, The
Company has determined, based on the evaluation of the térms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lense tenn nol constituting u substantial portion of the econamic life of the commercial
property, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and
accounts for these contracts as operating lease (see Mote [9),

Cperating leave classification - Compeny as lessee

The Company has entered into land lease agreements for the locutions of its investment property
portiolio. The Company has determined that it docs not acquire all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties. Accordingly, these were accounted for as operating leases

(see Note 19).

Build Trangfer Operate (BT0) Agreement with Cebu Province - Company as aperator

Un March 26, 2012, the Purent Company entered into a BTO agreement with The Provinee of Cebu
{Cebu Province). The BTO project relutes to the development, construction, and operation of
Rusiness Process Outsourcing (BPO) Complex by the Company at the land properties owned by Cebu
Provines located at Salinas, Luhug Cebu City. In August 2012, FLT assigned this agreement 1o the
Company.

Haszzd on the agreement, the Campany hat assessed that the Cebu Province {Gruntor) cannot condrol
or regulate the services thal the operatar must provide using the infrastructure, to whom it must
provide them and at what price. Due 1o this, the BTO agreement is assessed to be outside the scope
of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements,

I'he Company, on the other hand, has the right to operate and cam rentals from the project upon
completion but does not have ownership over the properties. The Company also has no substantial
risks and rewards on the properties for major part of its economic life. Thus, the Agreement is
classified as an operating lease. Accordingly, the related development cost was recorded under “BTO
rights” (s2e Motes [0 and 19).

Determiming whether i Arrangement containg a Lease - Build Operare Transfer (BOT) Agreement
On September 16, 2015, the Company entered into a BOT agreement with Philippine DCS
Development Comporation (PDDC), also a subsidiary of FLI. The BOT agrecment relaies 1o the
construction and cparation by FDDC of the S lacilities for 20 vears, during which PDDC will
supply chilled water for the provision of cooling energy to the properties of the Company within
Northgate Cyberzone, Muntinlupa City.

While the fulfillment of the terms and conditions of the agreement is dependent on the use of an assst
{i-e., DCS [ecilities), management assessed that the right to control the operations of such asset is not
conveyed to the Company considering that: {a) the Compuny has no ability to operare the asset nor
the right to direct PDDC to operatle the assel in & manner it determines; and, (b} the supply of chilled
water will not be exclusive to the propertics of the Company during the term of the BOT agreement,
Thus, the BOT agreement does not contain a lease within the scope of PAS 17 (see Note 10).
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Tmpairment assessment of nogfinanclial aysels

The Company nssesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the nonfinancial
ass¢ls (advances (o conlmclors, other current assets, investment properties, property and squipment,
BTO rights and prepaid DCS conneetion charges) may be impaired. The Company considers
indications of impairment such as significant changes in asset usage, significant decline in market
value, ohsolescence or physical damage of an asset, significant underperformance relative o expected
historical or projected future operating results and significant negative industry or aconomic trends.
If sech indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less cost to scll and value in use.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no impairment indicators were identified for the Company's
nonfinancial assgets.

Recognition of deferred tax assel

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income tax assels al each report date and
recuces it lo the exient that it is no longer probable that sufficient income will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred income lax assets (o be utilized. The Company believes that it will gencrate
suflicient taxable profit to allow all or pant of the deferred income tax assets (o be ulilized, Deferred
tax nssets amounted to B107.5 million and BT0.7 millien ag of December 31, 2008 and 2017,
respectively (see Mote 18).

Contingencies

I'he Company, in the notmal course of business, is involved in legal claims and disputes, The
Company, together with 1ts counsel, is conlesting these assessments. Based on the assessment of the
Company and ils counsel, the ouflow of resources that may arise from settlement of the said
assesament is not probable and that the amount is cummently cannol be ressonably determined.
Management believes that final settlement, if any, will have no material impact on the financial
statemments (22 Mole 26).

Use of Estimates and Assumplions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
report date that have a signilicant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next Minancial vear are discussed below,

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivablies
The Company 1ses a pravision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar logs pattemns,

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company s historical ohscrved default rates. The
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experisnce with forwand-looking
information. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates ure updated and changes in
the forwerd-looking estimates are analyred.

The assessment of the comrelation between historical observed defanlt rates, forecast economic

conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amoun! of ECLs is sensitive 1o chanpes in

circumstances and of forocast ceonomic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience

ﬁd forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the
ture.

The information aboul the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables is diselosed in Notes 5 and 25.

AR AT
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Estimating useful fives of investmeni propertivs, property and equipment, and intangible asser

The Company estimates the useful lives of its investment propertics, property and equipment, and
intangible assel based on the period over which these assets are expected to be available for use, The
estimated useful lives of investment properties, proparty and equipment, and intangible asset are
revicwed at lcast annually and are updated if expectations differ [rom previous estimates due 1o
physical wear and teor, and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of these assets. It is
possible that futare results of operations could be materially affected by changes in sstimares brought
about by changes in factors mentioned above. There were no changes on the estimated useful life of
the investment properties, property and equipment, and intangible asset. The carrying value of
investment properties amounted to B13.9 billion and BI12.3 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively (zez Note &), The carmying value of property and equipment amounted to B394 million
and F36.7 million a8 of December 31, 2018 and 201 7, respectively (s=e Note 9). The camrying value
of intangible asset amounted o #2.6 billion and P2.4 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respoctively (soo Mote 10),

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consisis of
2018 2017
Cash an hand and in banks PIISB45006 PAT2 484 127
Cash equivalents 401,685,640 752605410

#717,533,656  P1.333.089,537

Cash in banks earn interest at their respective bank deposil rates, Cash equivalents are shor-1erm,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with original
muturities of three (3) months or less from dates of placement and are subject 1o &n insignificant risks
and change in vafue.

Interest eamed from cash and cash cquivalents amounted to P12.2 million, B12.9 million and
P12 million v 2018, 2017 and 2014 respectively (ses Mo 21}

Receivables

Thix account consists of

r{] 1 2007

Trade (Mate 16) P509,021,477  P330 854 548
Cre from related parties (Note 16) - a7 25,600
Advances 1o officers and employees R475801 1,608,702
Others I 2827393 33,002,722
527,324,763 1,062,381,572

Lesx expecied credil loss 2R5,258 285258

527,139,505 P1.062,096,314

Trade reccivables reprosent charges (o tenants for rentals and wiilities which are normally collectible
within 20 days from billing date. These are coverad by security deposits by tenant’s equivalent to 3
months of rental paid by the lessees. All overdue and unpaid rent, ducs and charges are subject to
18% per annum and penalty of 24% per annum. Interest and penalties from late payments amounted
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Loy P3.9 million; P1.1 million ond PO.8 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 210,
Provisicn for expected credit losses recorded amounted to nil in 2018 and 2017 and $0.1 million in

2016,

Advances to officers and employees pertain lo salary and loans granted by the Company which are
collectible through salary deduction and are non-interest bearing to be used for operations.

Oithers include receivable from contractor and advances of real property tax related to the land lcased
by the Company.

The recenciliation of allowance for expected credit losses as at December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
foliows:

018 2017 206

Balance at beginning of vear P2185.248 B2ES 358 162,587

Provisions = - 122,671

Balance at end of year BIS5 258 B2B5,258 P2I83,258

Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

2018 2017

Input VAT = net FT00,020,962 P44, 787,289

Prapayments 17,198,594 17,512,384

Others 9,744,182 14,973,368

HI16,963,TIR 677,273,04]

Less allowance for prohahle losses 12,190,527 12,190,527

F514,773.211  P663,082.514

Input Value Added Tax (VAT) represents the taxes passed on from purchases of goods and services
subjected 1o VAT thal the Company can claim agninst any output VAT on sale of goods and services.

Prepayments consist of prepaid sxpenses for commission, rent, taxes and licenses, insurancs and
gssocmyion ducs, Amounts of prepaid commission expected to be amortized beyond 12 months from
end of reporting period amount to P77, 1 million and P23.0 million as of December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, and presented as noncurrent (see Note 10),

Oihers inglude office and maintenancs supplics.

The allowance for probable losses pertains to the pertion of outstanding input vat that is not expected
to be utilized in the future,

. Adlvances to Contraclors

Advances o conlractors represent advances for praject costs and other disbursements relaled to
buildings under construction. The advances shall be settled through recoupment agrinst contractors”
billings. Advances to contractors amounted to B2ZE0.0 million and #201 .8 million as of

December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

R0 N
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[nvestment Properties

The rollforward analyses of this sccount follows:

1018
Buildings and Conslirucltion

land Equipment in-prrogress Tutal
Cost
Balance at beginning of year F1.008 455808  P7,566.957.55)  B4925. 817,084 B13.701.231.052
Additions = 453,203 440 1,446,807, 776 1900011216
Balamce at end of vear 1,MHIR 455 205 8, 2T0,160,993 6 AT E2E TED 15,601,342 148
Arcumulated Depreciation
Halases at beginning of year = 1 AI1 454 9% - 143 454 530
Depreciation (Mate 20) - 251 464,167 - 253,464,167
Balasee &t end of vear = 1,692,919 097 - 1,692,915, 097
Ml Bopk Vialue 1,008 455,595 B6 527,241 806 fﬁ,}'.‘?.,ﬂ.!.‘.ﬂ'l -HJEIH&IH

M7
Buildings and Construction

Land Eguipmend i%-progreas Tetal
Caost
Bealance at beginning of vear PSS I20ATT  PTV4LLITATS B2G22 3042689  BI11,6340.833.371
Adften 43 131,718 T3 RANATE 2003423718 200,397 811
Balasce al end of vear 1,008 455,595 7 766,957 55] 4525817984 13,701,231,132
Accumulated Depreciation
Ralanse at beginning af year 1,238, 708,012 1,238, 708,012
Depreciation (Mote M) - 200, 746918 & 200,746,018
Dalarce a1 end of vear = 1,439,454,530 - 14394549030
Net Book Vaoloe PLOME 455,595  PGAIT.S0E62] P4O25BITOR4  PI2.261.776.202

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the cost of land still unpaid presented as “Payable 1o land owner™
amounted to P2ZE1.6 million (see Note 11). This pertains to the 19.2 hectares of South Road Propertics
acquired from Cebu City Government in 2015 (sec Mote 26). Other outstanding liabilities pertaining
to investment properties purchased on account anc recorded in the statements of financial position
under “Accounts payable and accrued expenses™ account, amounting #171.8 million and

P307.1 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (soe Nowe 11

Investment properties periain to the Company's land and buildings that are currently leased to third
parties. Berrowing costs capitalized o investment properties amounted to #2798 million,

P252.8 million and F146.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (s2e Notes 12 and 13). The
capitalization rates used range from 4.0% to 5.2% in 2018, 2017 and 2016,

The estimated aggregate fair value of the Company's investment properties amounied Lo
P15.2 billion and P14.8 billion as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, based on the income
approach using discounted cash flow analysis for land and buildings (see Mote Z4).

Using income approach. all expected cash flows from the use of the assets were projected and
discounted using the appropriate discount rate reflective of the market expeclalions,

Rental income from investment properties amounted to P2,198.1 million, #1,726.5 million and
B1,405.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Tenants' ducs from investment properties,
which are inclusive of CUSA, aircon and other charges amountad to #1,085.2 million, PE62.3 millicn
and B&E].5 million as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2014, rezpectively (see Kaote 20). Dpennng

1 A
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expenses incurred for maintaining and operating these investment propertics ameunted to B1,099.5
million, PEL 4.0 million and B&15.6 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 200,

9, Property and Equipment

The rollforward analysis of this account fallows;

INIR
Land Furnimre
Improvements and Fixtures Total
Cost
Balance a1 beginning of yeer R36,950,T03 BIZ 046019 P71 807712
Additians 1, 7EL X567 E 021,056 6,773,403
Balance a1 end of vear 35,703,160 41,267 955 TRETI11S
Accumulated Depreciation
Balanee a7 beginning of vear 17,229,156 18,669,566 3L R08 712
Depreciation (Meie 20) B43.805 3293310 4,137,125
PBalance at end of year 18,072 0610 20,062 BRG 40,008 847
Net Book Yalue P20,630.199 F19.005, 060 P30,635,168
T
Land Furnifure
Improvements and Finures Totzl
Cost
DBalance at beginring of vear P36 850,793 B34, 700,330 FT1660,023
Additions = 1,237,585 1,237.589
Balamce al end of vear 36,930,753 15046210 72,807,712
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance a beginning of year 16,664 267 16, 316212 32,980,539
Depreciation (Mot 20) Sha B89 13512394 2918183
Balance nf end of vear 17,229,156 18 669566 35,858 T2
Net Book Value F]E.Tll_&i'u‘ P17.277.353 P16,908, 090

Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still wsed in operations amounted to B20.6 million
and 819%.8 million as of December 31, 2018 and 201 7, respectively.

[0 Intangible and (3her Noacurrent Assels

This aceount congists of:

2019 2017
BTO rights (Motes 3, 12 and 13) B2,557,823,732 P2 A37. 133,674
Prepaid DCS connection charges (Mate 14) 300,545,956 245,770,285

Prepaid commission (Mate &) 77,121,536 23,037,954
Financial ssset at EVTOCT {(Note 24) 9,010,000 9,010,000
Deposits (Nate 253 41,157,431 4 500,161
Cihver advances 0,0 06 -

P21,5995 688,655 P2.719,452.084

A
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"BT0 rights” pertain to the cost related to the Build, Transfer and Operate agreement (BT0O) with
The Province of Cebu (Cebu Province) entered into on March 26, 2012, The BTO project relates 1o
the development, constrection and operation of Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Complex by the
Group at the land propenties owned by Cebu Provines located at Salinas, Lahug Cebu City, As of
December 31, 200 8 and 2007, cost of completed portion of the BTO project amounted 1o ®1.3 billion
and ®|.2 billion, respectively,

The rollforwand analysis of RTO rights follows;

218 2017
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P1,508.773.554 PL.841.231.739
Additions 174,334,169 667,541 815
Balance at end of vear 2683, 107,7Xy 2 508 773,554
Accumulated Deprecintion
Balance al beginning of vear 71,639,880 22,040,365
Depreciation (Note 20) 53 644,111 49,599,518
Balance at end of year 125,153,991 71,639_ 880
MNet Book Value P1557 823,73 P2437,131.674

Rental income recognized anising from the BTO agreement amounted o RI142.7 million,

B117.1 million and P85.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Tenants' dues from BTO
rights amounted o PS8.9 miliion, P65.2 million and B43.7 million as of December 31, 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively (see Note 20). Operating cxpenses incurred for maintaining and operating
thess azsats amounted o BEDA million, P56.3 million and 232.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively (see Mote 207,

Berrowing costs capitalized on the BTO project amounted to #6810 million, Pa6.4 million and
F28.8 million in 2018, 2017, and 2016, respactively (see Notes 12 and 13). The capitalization mtes
used in 2008, 2007 and 2016 range Mrom 4,00 10 5.2%.,

Prapaid District Cooling Svstem {D5) connection charge pertaing to connection fees paid by the
Company to connest to DCS service. This is amortized using straight line method based on the
contract period of connection. Unamortized connection fees amounted to B300.5 million and P245.8
millian a5 of December 31, 20018 and 2017, Connection fes pmortized in 2018 and 20017 amounted to

P12.6 million and P3.1 million, respectively.

The roliforward analysis of Prepaid DS connection charge finl lonws:

2018 2017
Cost
Ralance at beginning of year Pl48.878,142 P
Additions 67,371,928 248,878,142
Nalance ot end of vear 316,250,070 248878 142
Accumulated Depreclation
Balance st heginning of year 3,107,857
Amorization (Note 20) 12,596,257 3,107,857
Balance st cnd of year 15,704,114 3007857
Met Book Valoe FI00,545, 954 Plas, 70,285

Financial asser at FVTOCT pertains to 9,000,000 common shares or 16.97% cquity intercst in
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Pro-cxcel Propery Managers, Inc. (FPMI), acquired in 2017 and designated as [nancial assels at

FVTOCL

Deposits include electric meter deposits and security deposits.

Other advances pertain to payment intended for shares subscription.

11

Accounis Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

2018 2007
Advances from tenants F515,517,828 P415,126,690
Retention payehble = current portion (Node 14) 484,167,100 218,195 440
Accrued expenses (Mole 16) 203,075,503 91,936,046
Payable 1o land owner - curment (MNote §) 281,587,512 281,587,512
Payable 1o contractors (MNate 8) 171,753,983 307,083,047
Acerued rent payable 124,773,429 107,249,757
Acerued interest payable 111,450,986 102,545,874
Payahle lo suppliers 101,709,612 94,362,196
Withholding taxes payable 35,111,863 23,883,954

H1029.447.816 BL64£]1.972.516

Advances from tenants are advance payments received for rentals, utilities and other fees. These are
applisd against rental obligations of the tenants when they become due.

Relention payable account pertains to the amounts withheld by the Company from contractors’
progress billings which are returned upon completion of their services or expiry of the contractors”
warranty period

Accrued expenses include scorwals for ulilities, maintenance, service and encrgy charges, ouside
gerviees and other expenses, Thess are normally settled within the year.

Pavable 1o land owner periaing 1o the unpaid balance on the land acquired in South Road Propertics,
Cebu Ciry in 2015 (see Notes 8 and 26).

Pavable to contractors arises from progress hillings received from contractors for the constructions
costs incurred by the Company.

Accrued rent payable represents the difference between rent expense and rent payments due to
riraight line recognition.

Pavable to sappliers arise from various acquisitions of materials and supplies wsed for construction
and are normally payeble within one year.

Withhalding taxes payable consists of withholding taxes an compenzation and expunded withholding
taxes. These are normally scttled within one menth.

LT
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12, Loans Pavahle

Loans payable consists of:

N L S R || . S— 2017
Developmental loans from loeal banks (Note 15) 3 457.613,636 84052348 484
Less current portion of loans pavable 830,242 424 504,734 848
Long-term portion of loans pavable B1,618371,211 #3457.613.636

Dievelopmemal Bank Loans

These lpans are obdained to finance the construction of buildings for rentml. Developmental loans
from Jocal banks will mature on various dates up to 2023, These peso-denomninated loans bear
Moeting interesl rales cqual 1o 91-day PDST-F rate plus & spread of 1% per annum, prevailing markst
rate, or fixed interest rates of 4.00% (o 5.21% por annum. Loans availed by the Company in 2018 and
2017 amounted to nil and P300.0 million, respectively, Principal payments made in 2018 and 2017
amounizd 1o B394.7 million and P3.2 billion, reapectively (see Note 13), Principal payments in 2017
include pavment for pre-terminated loans payvable amounting B2.6 billion,

Interest expense which was capitalized relating 1o loans payable amounted to BEY.& million,
P165.6 million and P175.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Notes 8 and 107, The
capitalization rates used in 2018, 2017 and 2016 ranges from 4.056 to 5.2%.

Total interest expense charged to the statements of comprehensive incoms amounted 1o
Po3. 5 million, B96.] million and F101.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively,

The Company's loans pavable 15 unsacured and no asscts are held as collateral for these debts. The
agreements covering the abovementioned loans require maintaining certain financial ratios including
debi-to-equity ratio and interest coverage ratio.

The agreements also provide for restrictions and requirements with respeet to, emong others, making
substantizl change in present management and ownership strocture; acquisition of any shares of
stock; sale, bease or transfer and disposal of all or a substantial part of its asscts, cxcept in the ordinary
eourse of business, and entering into any merger, consolidation or rearoanization.

As of Diecember 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company 1s not in breach of any of these debt covenants.

. Bonds Payable

O July 7, 201 7, the Company issued Nixed ruie bonds wilth agyregate principal amount of

B6.0 billion and term of five and a half (3.5) vears from the issee date, The fixed rate is 5.055% per
annum, payable quarterly in arrears staming Cctober 7, 2017, As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
outstanding balance of bonds payable amounted 1o B3, 948.9 million and B5 936.1 million,

respectively.

The bonds are redecmablc at 1003 of face value on maturity date, which is January 7, 2023, unless
the Company exercises its carly redemption option. Interest expense which was capilalized relating
1o beads payvable amounted 1o B251.2 million and P153.6 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see
Notes 8 and 10),

Total interest expense charged 1o the statements of comprehensive income amaunted {o

(LR T
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P46.2 million in 2018 and nil in 2017 and 2016.

Unamortized debt issuance cost on bonds payable amounted #51.1 million and B63.8 million as of
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, Amonization of transaction costs in 2018
and 2017 included under “Interest and other financing charges" in the statemenis of comprehensive
income amounted to B12.7 million and B&.4 million, respectively,

The bonds require the Company to maintain a maximum debe-to-cquity ratio of 2.33x: and minimum
debt service coverage ratio of 1.1x. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company is not in breach
of any of these debt covenants.

4. (ther Moncurrent Linbilities
This account consists of:
2018 2017
Securily and other deposits (MNotes 24 and 25) PH42 405,071 B8O 461,756
Betention payable - net of current portion 45,644 480 201,395 532
PG63S, 049,551 P61, 837,188
Security and other deposits are those paid by tenants that will be applied o any outstending
ohligations of the 12nants ot the end of the lease term or upon pre-lermination. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, current portion of the security and other deposits prescated as “Orther
current linbilities™ in the statements of financial positien amounted to P164.7 million and
P156.0 million, respectively.
15, Equity

i diti i
Details of the Parent Company's capital sincks ag of December 31, 2018 and 2017 follow:

Commaon stock - P1 par value

Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares B2 00, 000, 00
Issued and cutstanding - 1,163, 226,668 shares 1163425668
Additional paid-in capital 102,900,666
Relained Eamings
Apgropriation

On December 19, 2018, the BOD approved the additional appropriation of relained enrmings
arnounting to 1.5 billion for capital expenditure requirement for the development of the following
projects: Filinvest Axis Tower 3, and Filinvest Axis Tower 4 1o be completad by 2020,

Ca December 20, 2017, the BOD approved the additions] appropriation of retained eamings
amounting 1o #1.0 billion for capital expenditure requirements for the development of & project

targeted to be completed by 200240,
On December 21, 2016, the BOD approved the appropriation of retained eamings amounting o

B2.5 billion for capital expenditure requirements for the development of & project targeted 1o be
completed by 2020.

AN BT
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Declarativm af Dividend

With the approval of the BOD, the Company declared and paid out cash dividends amounting to
B312.5 million, P383.9 million, and P3%3.3 million out of its unnppropriated retained eamings in
2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

After reconciling items, the Company’s retained earnings available for dividend declaration as of
December 31, 2008 and 2017 amounted to B204.6 million and BS872.% million, respectively.

Capital Management
The Company's primary chjective is 10 maintain s current sound financial condition and strong debt
service capabilities, as well i 10 continuously implement o predent financial management program.

The Company manages its capital siructure and makes adjustiments to it, in light of chanpes in
economic conditions. 1t elosely moniters its capital amd cash positions and carefully manages s
capital expenditures. Furthermore, the Company may also, fram time to time, seek other sources of
funding, which may include debt or equity iszues, depending on itz financing needs and markat
conditions. The Company continues to fund its project developments using medium to long-term
financing, which can help mitigate any negative effects of a sudden downium in the Philippine
sconomy or 2 sudden rise in interest rates,

The Company monitors capital using a debi-to-equity ratio, which is total leng-tenm debt divided by
total stockholders” equity, The Company includes within debt, interest-bearing loans and extemal
borrowings whether in the form of long-term notes and bonds. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016.

The following table shows how the Company computes for its debe-to-squity ratio as of
December 31, 20018 and 2007 (in thousands):

16.

2018 2017

Loans payable (Mote 12} F3.457,613 B2.052548

Bonds payable (Note 13) 5,948,938 5,936,172

0,406,551 0,088,520

Faquity 6,719,668 5,621,546

Dieht-to-equity rafio 1.40:1 1.78:1
Related Party Transactons

Partics are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 1o contrel the
other party in making financial and operating decisions or the parties are subject to commen control
or common significant influence (referred heresin as affiliates). Relnted parties may be individuals or
corporate entiises,

COuitstanding balances at vear-end are unsecured, interest free and require settlement in cash. unless
otherwise siated, As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has not made any provision for
impairment boss relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is underiaken sach
financial year by examining the Mnancial positien of the releted party and the market in which the
related party operates.
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A summary of the Company s related party transactions in 2018 and 2017 are shown in the following
table:

01K
Duisisading
Amnuat’ Vaoleme halsnee Terms Comditinm MNode
Band sacker covmm contrm
Cash nad enh equnlznis FLEE S4g 00] FARL A 900 0.50% 00 4.50%: Mo impainment 16 {a]
Iniezear incoens - 4atl 088 00 = ——=_—
FAER 167,076 FiEd 545,990
Linds revevabies
Parent Comgoaugy Necanteresl-beanng;
Hental revenue F11,T75,132 F17.620.836 idon pnd demznadalbils Unsetared 16
ATtz
Moninteresi-bearing;
elliebble gvery 200h day
Beamal revenue PEE,TLY 14Y P12 882,076 ol the month Unsacorod 15 (k)
Sarvioe fee imcome [Hote 00} THTE AL = NMocanicrosl-bearing Unescaned & ()
— Coenmislon income (Moo 201 3,586 965 = Nesimerest-bearing Unsecwed _ 164d)
FE1E14 544 F1:HR2OTE ]
Diu: from Rlstcd Pertics
Afiiaras
Inicrest-bearing ot 6.0%,
Adhvencess P65 a0 mb0 - pavable om dentand Lnssrared 1612
[mvizres Ineome lm a
708,143,438 ¥
Lithar Bonoameat Azeel
Poarerd
Sezurily depinl = P1,418,600 161ch
Affeliair
[HCR conneclim change (Nols 10) B54.775.4T1 FIO0545 956 Nompairmen 1600
o Cormeriiom fees (Mobe 200 (I2SSEMT) 0 0 0 =
Fﬂlil'ﬂ'.dnli i':l-l:laﬂaﬁl
Accoracs pavebls apd accrued
enpsngss e L1
P o pepary
Monigserssi-bearing;
__ Rental pxpons {P241,114 469 ﬂ!lﬂglﬁh ﬂﬂgkﬂud L nsacured I-&j:!
Affiios
Bervice end ensrgy foes Honiekeresi-haaring:
iols 20) {432,729 55N {1,569,060)  payable oo demand Unsecurod 1600
Renial experse  RAGEEIINN [POGO19)  Monickeres-beading npszurad 16{gh
Affifazie
Bomintered-bearing;
Service fee (600 03) - payuhlc on damand Unsecured L& iy
Manapemen fee mnd Munintersehearing;
MR Gl (4,254 470 IS M6 pavehle o demani [nsecspel
FGEE 198 135,756}
Dthiat 3 Lishils
Parenr Compary Moninheres-hearing;
— Loy dspenit - PR T paryabis Llnsocured 16 (k)
Arflitare
Boninlenes-teaning; Einssured [ (bl
—Sevumity diposits = B2 poyebl

P P11E55.108
A
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B W8
Owisianding
Amaunt' Volume balanre Terms Conditlons  Note
_ e 2007
Cui=iencing
smoany ¥ obome falemce Terins Condigors Mot
Famk wader comman ool
Cash and cash equivaients a6, 400,283 e S IEY (30 o 4 300 Ivo impairmesi 16 {a)
Intere iR ofid 5, [ 13,806 -
POT2,013,001 P96 000 738
Tracde reseivables
Farenr Campany
Moninere-beadng:
Eenlal sevieane BIS, 163 519 BIT620.5]6 due and demandable Lnagsurnd LG (b)
Afiiire
Kezimeresi-bearing:
callectible awery 20 dey
Renlal revenus Bl 546,171 5, 5R1,294 of Thiz mamith [ Instacuiread 16 b}
service (et ncome (Nods 200 10,345 077 = Mosimersi-beanng Lo 16 {d)
EEE‘MM 21 IIIIH:IE'-IILt -
[T W5 561,204
Dz Gom Relited Paries
Al
Advances (Nose 5} Tnverew-bearing ot 4.0%, Ussecured 16 {2)
BETSIER 000  BEVSIGLU00  peyable on demand
Inberes] indome I.Iilﬁ-.'i-lE I.!I-ﬁa-ﬁﬂ[l
B LI i A :
Cither Morsgurnees Asscl
Parent Compary
Szourity deposil = B AZE 00
A
DCS connoction chimge (Meode 10y P2EER7E_| 41 FI45,TT0 RS e fmpairmesd 16 ([}
_ Cormection fees{Moic 20y ~~ (RIO0VESTy 0= 5 i
P15, 770,285 FI4T, 198 KR
Aceounis pevable and accrued
Pureal Cowpidny
Penindgnes) -Dearag,;
Reninl gxponss (PHOL 446, 28T) (PIATREN31)  payshie oo demind Vnesased 18 ()
Ao
Sarvice and energy fees Ioninbaresl-heanng
(Mote 20} {91, b6k, 332) (38,504 800%  paveble on demend Un=eoured 1640
Eﬂrll ExEeAEs o 3 124,219 = Koninteres e anng Unaecesesd IS feh
A ffelite
Mominten sty anmg;
Servies fes (1.420.369) payaiie on demacd Lnsecuned 16 [d)
Managsment ot and Moninberes-beaning;
manpoessr ciost {4,050, 1805 (600 080]  pavabls oo densnd Umsccural
{11,370,705) (A, 10
[PITT 406 367)  (P41,825342)
{ Formand)
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1018
Outstanding
Sumount’ ¥olume balznee Terms Condifisas  Nate
Dihes Mopsuivent Liatiliny
Flarear Compamy Heminieres-beanng;
Security depasi [ PEGDEITE  due and demandible Unsecored 16 (b)
Al rie
Wominleeabeaing [ Tameounal 18 [W)
Seeaiy deposits P16RA 936 PEE912  sepahle

F1,6ER 956 F13A55 258

Significant related party mansactions are a5 follows, Outstanding balances at venrend are unsecured,
interest-free and setilement occurs generally in cash,

a) The Company maintyins savings accounts and short term deposits with East West Banking
Corporation (EW?), an affiliated bank. Cash and cash equivalents cam interest at the prevailing
short-term investment rates.

b Lease agreemenits with relaied parties - Compary as fessor
»  The Comnpany, &5 a lessor, entered into a space rental agreement with FLIL for the office space
in one of the Company's buildings. [ease period is from October 16, 2016 to
Qctober 13, 2021.

¢ The Company, as a lessor, entered into a space rental agreement with Filinvest Alabang Inc.
(FAIY, an enlity under common contral, for the office space in one of the Compamy’s
buildings. Lease period is from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2021,

# The Company, as & lessor, entered into a space rental agreement with Pro-Excel Property
Managers, Inc. (PPMI) for the olfice space in one of the Company’s buildings, Lease pariod
is from July 15, 2017 to July 14, 2020.

*  The Company, as » lessor, entersd info s space rental agreement with Dreambauilders Pre, Inc.
(P}, & Fellow subsidiary under FLI, Tor the office space in ong of the Compuny s buildings,
Lease peried is from August 10, 20017 to October 9, 2022,

¢} Lease aereements with related partics = Compoiy ay lessec
*  The Company, a5 a lesses, entered into a land lease agreement with FLI on the location of the
buildings currently leased to third partics and on those still under constrisction. Rontal
expense is based on certain percentages of the Company”s gross rentzl income.

¢ Inaddition, the Company, as o lessee, entered into & land lease agreement with FAT on the
location of the parking currently leased out to tird partics. Kental i bused on w certain
percentage of income earned from the parking space.

#  The Company, 45 a lessee, also entered into an agreement with Parking Pro, Inc., for s non-
pay parking facilities. Rental expence is hased on o fixed rate per shot.

d) Service agreements with releved parifes
s The Company entered into a service agreement with FAD whersby the Company shall pay
gerviee foes for general management services rendersd by the lotier for the operations of the

Company,
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#  The Company entered indo a service agreement with Filinvest Cyberparks, Inc. (FCI),
Filinvest Asia Corp, (FAC), and Pro-Excel Property Manager, Inc. (FPMI) whereby the
Company shall lease out a portion of its office space and perform accounting and
administrative services (o the latter for & fee,

ed On August 23, 2017, the Company made advances for capital expenditures to Filinvest
Cyberparks, Ing, (FCI), a fellow subsidiary under FLIL, amounting to P6OG.O mal lion, and subject
ny fixed interest of 6% per annum. On October 12, 2018, FCI paid the advances for capital
expenditures amounting 1o P631.2 million, net of B7.8 million withholding tax. Related interest
earned in 2018 and 20017 amounted to P27.2 and P11.8 million, respectively.
On October 27, 2017, the Company also extended advances for capital cxpenditures to Filinvest
Cyberzone Mimosa. Ine, (FCMI), & fellow subsidiary under FLI, amounting to P72.0 million,
subject to interest of 6% per annum. On August 30, 2018, FCMI paid the advances mmounting to
P75.24 million, Rclated intercst carned in 2018 and 2007 amounted o #2.5 million and
P0.7 million, respectively.

0N BOT Agreemeni
In accordance with the terms of Build Operate and Transfer (BOT) agreement between the
Company and Philippine DCS Development Corporation {PDDC), the Company paid prepaid
DCS connection charges to FDDC amounting to P248.9 million, to be consumed by existing and
future buildings within Nerthgate Cyberzone in Muntinlupa City over the service period of 20
years.

On December 14, 2018, the Company paid addilional prepaid connection charge for connecting
the equipmeant to Filinvest Axis Tower 2 amounting P62, 79 million.

In September 2017, the construction of DCS facilities was completed and certain buildings of the
Company were supplied with chilled wuter.

Amonized portien of DCS connection charge pertaining to existing buildings amounted 1o

P12.6 million and P3.1 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. These amounts were recognized
a5 part of reimbursable expense 1o venants (see Note 200, Connection and service charges incurred
for these buildings in 2018 and 2017 aggregated to B289.0 million and PR1.6 million, respectively
{see Nate 20).

Key managemeant parsonnel of the Company are smployees of FAL The compensation of the said
emplovess is puid by FAL and us such, the necessary disclosure reguired under PAS 24, Relored Porny
Disclosures, are inclueded in FATD's financial statements,

The Company has a noncontributory, unfunded defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all
of its officers and regular employecs. Under the Plan, all covered officers and employees are entitled
to cash benefits after satisfying certain age and szrvice requirements.

The retirement plan provides retirement benefits (eguivalent to 70% to 125% of the {inal monthly
salary for every yewr of service) afler satisfying certrin age and service requirements.
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The Company accrues retirement costs (included in “Retirement Hability™ in the Company's
statements of financial pesition) based on an actuarially defermined amount using the projecied unit
credit method.

Uncler the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
1o qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the emplovee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agraements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does mot require minimum
funding of the plan. The Company updatcs the actuarial valuation by hiring the services of a thind
party professionally qualified actuary.

The following tables summarize the components of “Pension expense™ recognized in the stiements
of comprehensive income and *Retirement liahility™ recognized in the statements of finencial position
for the existing retirement plan,

Component of pension expense in profit or loss follow:

2018 2017 2016

el pension expense in profit or loss:
Service cost BaED 205 B16E 647 P171.032
Met interest expense 74,855 40,220 34,762
Total pension expenss 764,060 #208.867 B205 7o

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P902,313 P693 446
Penxion expenss Tod, 060 208,847
Amount 1o be recopnized in QC] [247.269) -
Balance m end of year P141%104 POOZ.313
Remessweromen gains recognized in OCL
2018 2017 _20i4
Remeasurements in ather
comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from:
Experience adjustments (F142.497) P Pl 048247
Finencial assumptions 369,059 485 228
Demographic changes assumptions 20,707 - -
B247.269 P P1,537,475

The prncipal assumplions used in determining pension benefits are as follow:

2018 2017 2016
Dizcount rates 7.9% 5.8% 5.R%
Kalary increase rales 8.0%4% T.08% 7.0%

O G A
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The sensitivity amalysiz for significant assumptions as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is shown
below:

Incrcase (decrease) Impact on defimed
in busis points hunefit obligation

Discount rates =100 Fi,i46,344
=10 1,765,333
Salary rates +100 1,761,404
-100 1,144,311

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumption
accurring &s of the end of the reporting date, assuming il all other assumplions were held constant.
Management believes that pension obligation will not be sensitive to the salary mate increases because

it 15 expected to be at the same level of the remaining life of the obligation.

. Income Tax

Cm June 6, 2000, the Company was registered with the Fhilippine Economic Zone Authority (PEZA)

pursuant to the provisions of Republic Act 7916 as an Economic Zone (ECOZONE) Facilities
Enterprise. As a registered enterprise, the Company is entitled to certain tax benefits and nontax
incentives such as exemption from pavment of national and local t2xes and in liew thereof s
special tax rate of five percent (5%) of pross income. The Company is also entitled 1o rero percent

(0%) value addad tax for sales mads 1o ECOZONE enmemrises.

The breakdown of provision for income tax shown in the statements of income follows:

2018 2017 2016
At 5% stetutory incoeme tax rale P58,574.566 P33.8035,193 B&63 664,051
Met result from non-PEZA activities:
Current 52,233,007 18,186,286 (4,489,168)
Deferred 21,505,733 96,920,644 63,839, 0:4
P205,603,306 P168910,123 P123,013,927
The components of the Company”s net deferred tax assets (liabiliey) follows:
2018 2017
Fresented in profli or fogs
Dieferred tax assels
Advance rentals B73.881,522 140,927,788
Deferred rent payable 30875427 27,676,126
Provision for future major repairs 1812946 [ Bl20d5
Accroal of pension obligation IH9917 160698
Provvision for doubtful accounts 85,577 85,577
Unrealized forcign currency exchange loss 13,351 19472
107,058,740 70,682,607
Deferred tax lisbility
Cepitalized bormowing costs (283,632,468)  (183,544,220)
PAS 17 adjustment (88,194,734) (58,401,116)
(371,827,202)  (243,945,336)
(264,708,462) (173,262,729}

(Forward)

TR T T



-4 -

Presented in OCI
Deferrad tax liability on net actuarial gains cn
pension lizhility (#74,181) B

(P264,842,643) (P173.262.729)

The reconciliation of provision for income tax af the statutory tax rate to provision for income lax
shown in the staterents of comprehensive income follows:

2018 2T 2016
Tax at statutory rate B484,765 689 BA05, 717,224 Pad] 207,205
Adjustrents for:
Income tax al 3% preferential
raie (270,483.070)  (231,460,137)  (317.650,650)
Interest income subjectsd io
final tax (5,679,313} 5,346,964 [F42,628)
F20S.603,306 PL68,910,123  RI23,011,927
19, Leases
As lessor, fimare minimum rantals under operating leases are as follows:
2018 2017
Within ene year F2LIIT1M0861 PI.B87.296,320
After one year but not more than five vears 568K 831,684 4,200,565, 403
More than five years 1.882 644,391 132,866,593

P9,908,615936  B6.220,728.316

The Company is engaged in office leasing operations and entered into leuse sgreements with third
partics and related parties (see Mote 16). These leases generally provide for either (a) fixed monthly
rent (k) minimum rént or a cérfain percentage of gross revenue, whichever is higher.

Ag lessee, future minimum rentals under operating lease as of December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Within ome vear F21.5820,404 P23,137,355
After one year but not more than [ive vears 99,249,704 100,892,522
More than five vears 741,992,836 751,731,465

P863,068,947 _ P875.761,342

The Company entered into a land lease nrrangement wilh third parties and related parties
{zze Mote 16). Renizl is based on a monthly rate with rate escalation cn a yearly basis and coriain

percentages of the Company's gross rental income.
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20, Oiher lncome

Chbher income 15 composed of tenant reimborsements and other miscellansows income from pental
facilitics. The sccount also includes commission income and service fee income recognized from

service agreement from its affiliates.

2018 2007 Nis
Tenant ducs PL1T4098,142  PO27.450,185  P725323,681
Expenses incurred (Wotes 8 and 10):

Utilitics (Notes 10 and 16) (B02,769.849)  (595,022.685)  (448339,129)
Services (146,243 259)  (115904,954)  (104,631,985)
Repairs and maintenance {161,817,405) (94,493, 124) (75,069,000)
Depreciation (Notes 8, 9, and 10) (30,897 533) (29,470,158) (20,008,703)
Salarics and wages (Mote 16) (27,173,819) (22,401,330 (13,910,709)
Insurance {3,164,994) (12,049,051) (6,322,050)

Others (1,862 4583) (12,755 M6
_ (1,179,931,382)  (870,254,074)  (668.289.623)

Net tenant dues (5,833,241 57,196,111 56,934,058

Service lee income (Mate 16) T.h73,436 10,349,077 5,546,051

Commission income (Note 16) 0.386,963 11,110,503 5363967
Misce llancous 3334511 1,111,799 431,461 578

P14,561,670 PB6,367.490  P519,306,254

The miscellaneous income in 2016 includes claims for liguidating damages from a contractor rekaring
to lost revenue amounting to #450.0 million. The agreement with the contractor provides that the
Company has right to impose and deduct whitever liquidated damages against any sum or sums doe
to the contractor and the contractor hereby unconditionally authorizes the Company to deduct any
liquidated damages without incurring ary liability whatsoever, for such deductions and the contracior
hereby releases or quitclaims the Company for such liability, il any.

21. Interest Income

Imterest income consisis of:

2015 2017 2016
Interest incame on:
Cash and cash equivalents
{Notes 4 and 16) P12.216,842 P12,858,338 P1,808,76]
Advances to related partics
[Mute 16) 20,783 425 12,465 600 -
Onthers (Note 3) 3,896,538 1,055,041 B48,128
B45 496,805 B26 ITRGTY B2 656 480

Ohthers consist mainly of interest and penalties on late rental payment of lenants,

AR
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11. Earnings Per Share

ZINLE 2017 201 6

4. Netincome W 1410282325 P1,183.480,623 P1,347,676,755
b. Number of outstanding common

shares 1,163,426,668 1163426668  1,163,426.668

Basic/Diluted EFS (u/b) #1.21 B1.02 P1.16

I'he Company assessed that there were no potential dilutive common shares in 2018, 2017 and 2016,

23, Segment Reporting

The Compainy his delermined that it is aperating as one operaiing segment. Based on management’s
assessmenl, na pan of component of the business of the Company meets the qualifications of an
operating segment as defined by FFRS &, Cporaring Segments.

The Company’s leasing operations is its only income generating activity and such is the measure used
by the chicf operating decision maker (CODM) in allocating resources.

The Cwnpmu does nol repon its resulis based on geographical scgments. The Company has no
significant customer which contributes 10% of more (o 1he revenuss of the Company.

24. Fair Value Meagsurement

The following table sets forth the fair value hicrarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities
measured at fair value snd those for which fair values are required to be disclosed;

28 2007
Fair ¥alue Frir ¥alae
Hignificant Sigmificen|
enabservable urahseryahle
Carrying valee  npwh (Level 31 Camying wolue imputs (Level 3)
Asset measered af fair valae
Financial esset nt FVWTOC] 3,010,000 FR,m10,000 G0 (00 F4,01 0,000
Asvees for which fair valoes wre disclagid
Invesiment propertics 13,908.323.251 15261379820 11261, 776202 |4,831,.390,754
FI33]T, FIE, 170,259,828 F]Il"'[b']‘:ﬂ&![lz Ela 80, 754
Liahilitéex for which fuir valses are
disgboped
Financial Habilities at amartized cas
Loans payabie PRLASY 613,636 BYLASI65.273 B 052 043484 BT EOTS15
Bands payahle 3,048 007051 546,090,641 3.93¢,1%2,114 5035147135
Sceuthly and otber depodis BT, 100,000 07035015 636,496 E37 £ R I20.37H

PI0.213.650.327  #10.084.579.4039  B10,625,017435 P10,436.675 419

Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and current portion of accounts payable and sccrued expenses approximate the fair market
values,

Estimated fair value on debes (loans payable and bonds payable) with fixed interest and not subjected
ta quarterly repricing is based on the discounted value of future cash flows using the applicable
interest rates for similar types of loans as of reporting daie. Long term de®t subjecied to quarterly
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repricing is not discounted since it approximates fair value. The discount rates vsed range from 3.81%
1o 5.45% as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in cstimating the fair value of the financial
instruments anc:

*  Financial assets at FYTOCL The fair value is determined by discounting future cash Mows using
the applicable rates of similar types of instruments. The difference between the carrying value
and the fair valee is not significant,

*  Investment properties. The fair value Is computed based on the income approach using
discounted cash flow analysis. In the income approach, all expected cash flows from the uge of
the asscts were prejected and discounted using the appropriate discount rate refllective of the
markel expections.

*  Securify and other depagits, The discount rales used ranges from 2.4% 1o 3.9% as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, Fair value is computed based on the expected future cash outflows.

During the vears ended December 31, 2018, 20017 and 2006, thers were no transfers between Level |
and Level 2 fair value measurements, and oo transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
MEAsUrSmEnls.

23, Finuncial Risk Management Ohjectives and Policies

T'he Company ‘s Mlinancial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
long-term debt, accounts payable and scerued expenses and security and other deposits. The main
purpose of the long-term debt is to finance the Company s operations while all other financial
instruments resulted from the conduct of business.

The main risks arising from the Company”s financial instrumenls are interest rte risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management policies are summarized below:

a, Jmierest rate risk
The Company’s cxposure to market risk for changes in interest rates refates primarily 1o the
Company’s bong-term debt. Inierest rates are dependent on floating interest rates, subject 1o repricing
as determined by the creditor bank during the term of the loan. The following table demonstrates the
sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rales, with all other varizhles held constant, of
the Company’s income before income lax.

Effact an incorme

before income

Increase (decrease) taxeapitalized

in basis points borrowing costs

2018 +100 (B34.6 million)
=11H) 34.6 million

2007 +10d {P40.5 million)
=100 4.5 million

There is no impact on the Compuny”s equity other than those already affecting the statements of
comprehensive income.
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b, Credic Hk
Credit risk is the risk that & counterparty will not meet its obligations under & financial instrument or
customer contract, keading to a financizl loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activitics, primarily for its trade receivables, and from its financing activities, inchuding
deposits with banks and financial institutions, and other financial instruments,

Credit risk anising from rental income from leasing properties is primarily managed through a tenamt
selecrion process. Prospective tenants arc evaluated on the basis of payment track record and other
eredit information, In sceordance with the provisions of the lease contracts, the lessees are required
to deposit with the Company security deposits and advance rentals which helps rediice the
Company's credit risk exposure in case of defaulls by the tenants. For existing tsnants, the Company
has put in place a monitoring and follow-up system. Receivables are aged and analyzed on a
continuous basis to minimize credit risk associated with these receivables.

With nespect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, the Company's exposure 1 credit risk relates to default of the counterparty
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instrements.

An impairment analysis is performed at each réporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are hased groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by market scgment and collateral type). The caleclation reflects the
probabiliry-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
ecanamit conditions.

Set out below is the information about the 2018 and 2017 credit risk exposure on the Company’'s
lzase receivables using a provision matrix:

Tedaldl L wrrent =3 days  I0-Sddaye  di-Sdays =91

Expeched credit loss race a.0% 0.0 s i.0% a.0% s
Esfimatnd intal pross carmring amount

xi defssly ) P b ) P Ll e
Fuprotre oredif buss B (= P [ [ [

The expected credit loss has been set at 0,0% rate becanse the historical collection pattern of
receivable from tenants are collected within 20 days from the billing date. The security deposits and
advance rentals are considered in the calculation of impairment as these can be used to offset unpaid
receivables. [n most case, recoveries are higher than the amount of receivable at default. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, more than 100% of the Company’s trade receivables are covered by
security deposits and advances rentals, resulling 1o zero amount of ECL in 2018 and 2017,

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at FVTOCL, the Company's exposure to credii risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure cqual to the carrying amount of
these instrizments.
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The table babow shows the credit guality, based en the Company s credit mting system ms of
December 31, 2018 and 200 7T:

e 20EY
Melther Fast Due sor Iopaired
Semddard  Fawm D bun Pair Diig
High Grad: Grade oot Imgabred  and Impaired Tatal
Cuash snd casly equivalemb® FTI7 0458 [ [\ [ BT AR5
Tererivabies 306 976400 19,777 B 18528 517,839,805
Degerwits 41187431 — - - BLAET AN
Fl.lﬂﬂhﬂl P- liﬁ.‘.‘?& [FIERET] B IREETT 202
5 vk on hevd amomniing W PELGGD
2017
Maither Paa® Doe nor Impased
Saadasd Pail Due but Past Do
High Cirade Grade ncd Impaired and brreaaired Totad
Cash and cosk pquevnlents* Pl 325.056,337 F- P- P- 325,004,557
Heczivabics LME DG 5% IS, 745040 rd S L) 1D O 1
Tposite &S00 08I - = = £
F2375 A B B BLS 745 060 PII525R NI ENTES

SBethudes stk an e rmonesting io PI3000.

The analysis of trade receivables which are past due bul net impaired as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 follows

Pust Due ki nod [mpasied

<30deys 3060 dms 61004 Q1120 davs  >130 duyg Tozal
018 P13550.80%  P5,053.620 F197.779 F2E0,049 FI06,2T7  F19,777.544
2017 13,743,100 494,576 476,074 400,567 630,T4E 15,745,060

Liguidity rigk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter diflicully in meeting obligations
associated with the financial lizbilities that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset.
The Company's objective i8 1o maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
threugh the wse of bank loans. The Company's practice is that float will be kept at a minimum.

The 1zhles below summanze the maturity profile of the Company's financial asscis held to manage
liquidity a5 ef December 31, 2018 and 2017;

ks
Pgies = §veue
Dndemand  <M0dep  M-#idnn  §-%0dis > Wde sear batal 0§ yeary Tostal
Comy e ik
Eralmy RS0 PR " ¥ FoPTIAL ER [ T TIETRS
Harsuphisy 7,360 18589 00 ERRLE10 mI ™ LN 17810 505 ~  §YTOiE
Dorucsi - - - - - = 1,187 il
NN ""’EE Ew-.ﬂl B19T, 7T PR AR FILLAATL 60 4187 400 Fi 38 Tee ek
17
Lisdam T
Ty ggmran '-"'Zgﬁ - E ey 1 - 90 s > S ey I-;-_:._!l;i 'ZI-E Lol
Ciak wind i
ejnviens  PITEAM P FISLENS 410 P= - P~ FlLX2809%. 07 R FLERT N8 55T
Rroprod ey 3 B30 244 (RN VRE 11 ol Y ATE | 031,300 |03 0%E 30 = 0 e i
= = = = 4,530, 151 & 500160
BLANE RN TH!  Bove 15 00 Rt Ty LT I 00000 FE R 1 181 T 13
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Muturity profile of the Company”s financial Habilities, a5 at December 31, 2018 and 2017 i shows
below {in thousands):

Ll
¥ Tpiss =1:3 =38 Thren
Dl E. rital Bar Yaurn & vaErE L
FOS FEALEIS FMALG K Rl
= o - EDERE0 — RULMD
[akoieal in leng-icin dobre 114638 = = = LLEE  L001 1,340 - - 1SeNRT
Acreaniy pays bl ued
BidFmd o i [RL8 e ) - - - s Laieaed - - = LTRAdN
Sorariry iind ocher depatin — = BT 06 R4 HO . = e DT 1D
FLITATE PISio  PLESVA] PRL¥T PRIV A1 FAeeiedt PLUAAl PeIREN [T
*lr sl Amer mToR pnwkl
o7
Lhene & 0 | L | Chim

Tras

Pdid. | b4

Bacaly Payelile 000 M £ B0 0
Entereil on Rosgasm Skt 102 54 - - - 103548 1ITAERE 104 - ATEG
Arcerem payskbe and
aserisd Sepetatn 1,150 588 - - 1K1 GEE 1 a3 - 200,008 L1971
Fimaids pid el o) L ED - Tl = 156015 171 e M1i¥3 = BIS 8¢

FLI8 0 WEvTe  Feeadt  BOTIT WAT Tl BEYPITG WA T BPSAVAT G SI000K11 828 180

*laebad o fabuie ineeenit nivabic

Changes in liabilities anising from financing activitics for the year ended December 31, 201 B follows
{in thousands):

Japuary 1, Awailment! Moncash Dhecember 31,

1] Addition Fayments Movement 1014
Loans payable P4,052,544 - (P594,735) P P3,457,613
Bonds payvable 5,936,172 3314 = G452 5,948,058
Accried interest 102,545 402,083 = {483,17H) 111,451
F10,091,066 Fiﬁe!ﬂ" ’!Hdlﬂ ll’l"-l'rE.'I'I-ﬂ P4,518,0a2

Iamuary 1, Avallmeny Mancash December 11,

N = 2017 Addition Payrnents Movernens 2017
Loans payable B E89 525 300,000 i(#3,233,318) Boe, 141 4,052,348
Bonds payable 5,000,000 {70, haa} 6,138 5,936,172
Acenued intenec 42,806 = {329.537) 386,377 102 246
Pp 037 313 P5 300,000 (F3.661.1211 P45].ESE P10.091 066

“Noncash movement” column includes amortization of debt issuance costs and interest expense for
loans payabls and bonds payable.

. Contingencies

The Company is involved in various legal actions, claims, assessments and other contingencies
incidental to its ordinary course of business. Management believes that any amount the Company
may have to pay in connection with any of these matters, while currently not reasonably
determinahle, would not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results,
The information normally required under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, is not disclosed on grounds that it may prejudice the outcome of the ongoing proceedings.

LRI LR
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Deed of Sale on Instaliment of the 19 2-hectare South Road Properties (3RE)

In July 2015, CPL, together with the Parent Company and FA] (collestively referred 1o as Filinvest
Consortium) won the bidding for a 19.20-hectare lot in Cebu's SEF (s¢e Note §). Thereafler, in
August 7, 201 5, Filinvest Consortium entered into & Deed of Sale on Installment (D51} with the Cebu
City Government, In a letter dated lanuary &, 2017, the Cebu City Mayor questionad the validity of
the sale and gawve the buyers the option to withdraw from the sale a1 buyer’s discretion. In a bketier to
the Cebu City Mayor dated February 7, 2017 (the Lerter), Filinvest Consortium expressed its
intention to rescind the DS1. Under the D51, Cebu City underiook to comply with several eovenants,
underlakings und obligations no later than February 7, 2016 (or 180 days from execution of the

DSI). The Leter pointed out that as of Fehruasy 7, 2017, the said covenants, undertakings and
chligations have not been complied with and it docs not appear that these will be complied with
within a foreseeable reasonable period of time,

The rescission of the DS] shall only take effect upon retum by Cebu City of the down payment and
instaliment payments made to Cebu City by Filinvest Cansortium, plus interests, within ninety (90)
days from receipt of the Letter in accordance with Section 5.7 of the DSI. Pending receipt of such
payments, the D51 shall remain valid and subsisting by and among the parties.

As of February 27, 2019, such payment has not been received and no formal and definitive legal

proceeding has bean umiertaken by the parties on this matter. Consequentiy, as of said date, the DSI
remaing valid and Filinvest Consortium has the sole and rightful claim over the property.

(NALER AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholbders

Cyberzone Properties, [ne.

5th - Tth Flooss, Vector One Buoilding, Nonhgate Cyberzone,
Filinvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City

We have audited the financial statements of Cyberzone Properties, Inc. (the Company) as at and for the
vear ended December 31, 2018, on which we have rendered the attached report dated February 27, 2019,

In compliance with Securitics Regulation Code Rule 68, as Amended (2011), we are stating. as of
December 31, 201 8, that the above Company has one (1) stockholder owning ong hundred (100) or more
shares,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Wbl &Y

Michael C. Sabado

Fariner

CPA Cemificate Mo. 89336

SEC Acecreditation No. 0664-AR-3 {Group A),
March 16, 2017, valid until March 15, 2020

Tax ldentification Mo, 160-302-865

BIR Accreditation ™o, 08-0001908-73-2018,
February 26, 2008, valid wati] February 25, 2021

FTR No. 7332607, January 3, 2019, Makati City

February 27, 2019

NIRRT mmrab

By e S e i T Tl i rresl
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INDEPENDERNT AUDITOR'S REMORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Sweckhobders and the Board of Directors
Cyberzone Properties, Inc.

Sth - Tth Fleors, Vecior One Building. Northgate Cyberzone,

Filinwvest City, Alabang, Muntinlupa City

Sy Goees \Veasyo & Co Tl (B2 Ee OOT

BOSTEC Fog. Mo, D001,
Doctobanr o, J01R walks uedll dagoei 24, 2021
SEC Accraditelion Ba . 007 2-F8-5 (Group A)
Fowmneas B, 3008, walid undill Mosgmber 5 2021

We have audited in accordance with Philipping Standards on Auwditing, the financial statements of
Cyberzone Propertics, Inc. (the Company) as at December 21, 2018 and 2017 nnd for each of the Usree
years in the period ended December 30, 2018 amd live ssued vur report thercon dated February 27, 2019,
Cur nudils were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the bazic financial statemenis taken as a
whale, The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the
respansibility of the Company's management. These schedules are presented for purposcs of complying
with the Securities Regulmion Code Rule 68, as Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic financial
statements. These sehedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the mudit of the
basic financial statements and, in cur opinion, fairly state in all maierizl respects, the Minancial data
required 1o be set fonth thercin in relation 1o the basic financial stmements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAY O & CO.
wr/l

Michaal C, Sabado

Partner

CPA Cenifieate Mo, R334

SEC Accreditation Mo, D664-AR-3 (Group A),
March 16, 2007, walid until March 15, 2020

Tax Identification Mo, 160-302-865

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001998-73-2018,

February 26, 2018, valid until February 25, 2021
PTR Mo. 7332607, January 3, 2019, Makati Ciry

February 27,2019

& by ol B B ey (Pl | el
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CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC. .
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Schedules

Supplementary Information and Disclosurcs Required by SRC Rule 68, as Amended (2011)
Unapproprinted Betained Eamings Available for Dividend DMsiribution

Schechule of all Effective Standards and Interpretations under Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Financial Soundness Indicators

Company Struciure



CYBE RZONE PROPERTIES, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY

REQUIRED ON SRC RULE 68 AND 68.1, AS AMENDED (2011)
DECEMBEER 31, 2018

Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issned the amended Securitics Regulation Code
Rule SRC Rule 68 and 68.1 which consolidates the two separate rules and labeled in the amendment as
“Part | and "Part 117, respectively. It also prescribes the additional information and schedule
requirements fior issuers of securitics W the publie.

Below are the additional information and schedules reguired by SROC Bule 68 and 68.1 as nmended thet
are rélevant to the Company, This information is presented for purposes of filing with the SEC and is not
required piart of the basic financial statements.

Schedule A, Long term debt
Below is the schoedule of long-term debt of the Company {(amounts in thousends). Each loan balance is
presented net of unamortized deferred costs.

T¥5e nfUH‘:iﬂiﬁnd Amauzii Cursent Moanrer
Drevelopments] laans
Unsecired T-year loan obtained on Juby 7, Hi14 end will mature nm

Juby 7, 2021 winh inberes! rabe cousl 1o FDE Treasory Fixing, 50%

af the principsl is pavablz m 20 quearterly payeents starkng

October 2016; 50% payabls ot matarity, B342,500 #0000 BTS00
Ungecured T-year loan obtained on Decemer 16, 2013 and will neature

on Deoomber 16, 2020 wilh intoncst rslo oqual ko PDST plus spread

of 1% wabject to repricing af the end af the Tth year. 5% of tha

principal is payshle in 20 quarterly prymests siartng Masch 2016

5% payahle &t mahsrity. 472,500 T0.000 402,500
Unsseared lcas obiained on Tane 28, 2016 end will matere on

Tune 28, 2021 with fixed interest, 30% of the priscipal is payable

in 12 quanterly payments Sarting Septensber 200 8; S0l peyahle st

malurity. 458,133 #3,%33 ATH000
Unsegmned loan obtadned on Novernber 19, 2005 and will matare o

Wowember 15, 2023 with fixed interen rate. The principal is

payable in 16 quariedly paymenls starting Febowary 2006; 30%4

paable At matarity. 4001, 000 - 400000
Unsezumed losn obmined an April &, 20015 with interest rate equal tn

P35 Treasary Fldng (PDET-F) plas 1% per annum. 0% of the

principal s payuble im 1] quenierly end 20% pavable mi mmuricy o2

January 31, 2020 136,364 157576 74,788
Unescurad baan ebaised on Puly 26, 2016 and will matane sn Taly 24,

H021 vtk Aaeed Irnscrest e, The prineipal |s payable in 12

guarierly prymenss starting Oclober 200E; S pq.ﬁhlru maEuriy 35415 585313 T8
Unsocured koan obdaimed on Asgusa 5, 300} and will matare on

Aunpusz 20, 2030 with interest rate of PDST-F ples 1% speead, 509

of the prisgipal i poyabis s 20 quanerdy pimends slarisg

Mewvember 201 5; 30% payable at maverity. 337500 50,000 1R7 500
Unseoored loan obtsined on March 1, 2004 and will magure on

March 3, 200159 wilh imterest rate of FIIST=F. 508 ol the principed is

payabds in 11 goanmesly payenenis saning June 2008; 505 payohbe

i ity om Augus 31, W20 250,000 250,000
Linsecured loan ohtained cn May 7, 2015 and will mature on

Muy T, 2020 with flaed lmterest rate. The peincipal {2 prvable in 12

quarerly prymeends starting Asgust 2017, 30% peyshls &1 metariy. 215,000 50,000 175,000
linsccured lnan ahtamed on Jonuary 30, 2005 and will meiure op

Jenuary 30, 2020 with flxed tberest rate for 3 years, repeicing et the

emd of Jrd yers. The principal i paywble in |2 quarterly peymesns

Sartiag Jasuary 2017: $0% pavable al matusity. 100,000 0,000 130,004

B3 417613 Ry 240 FL618.371




Bomds
Fixed retc boeds with princips]l amount of P60 billion mnd term ol £.4

years fiom the iee date wax isseed by the Comrgqeny om July 7, 2007

Iy mgbane an Jemuary 20T with fived imterest rate i 5.05% par

AROAM P 948 917 2 PSR ST
PO.406.550 PEID.ME  PE.SAT.I08

Each loan balance is presented net of unamortized deferred costs, The agreements covering the
sbovementionsd loans require maimtaining certam finincial mtos of maximum debi-to-equity ratio of
2.33x and minimum interest coverage ratio of 1.1x. The agreements also provide for restrictions and
requirements with respect to, among others, making distribution on its share capital; purchase, redemption
or gegquisition ol any share of stock; sale or transler and disposal of ull or a substantial part of its capital
astels; resfrictions on use of funds; and entering inte any partoership, merger, consolidation or

TeOrgan sation.

]
Below is the list of outstanding payables 1o related parties of the Company presented in the Compamy
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2018 (amounts in thousands):

Ralance @ Ralence ar

peginming of end of

Relatiznship Malure perios meriid

Filinves Alabang. Inc. Affillare ACD ol [l
Filinvesl Land, [a¢ Pareni ADE 14721 {13&)
Philipping DCE Development Carporaton A fMilliabe A 21, 514 67372
Othery Affiliane A 600 -
B A28 BT 236

Nature of infercompany fransaciions
The nature of the intercompany transactions with the related parties 15 described below;

a, Expenses - these pertain to the share of the Company in various common selling and marketing

and gencral and administrative cxpenscs.
b. Advances - these pertain to temporary advanzes from related parties for working capital

reguirements
¢. Management and marketing fee
d. Reimbursable expenses
¢. Rentals
f. Purchase of land

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s intangible assets consist of Duild, Transler and Operate (BTO)
rights. BTO rights in the Company's statcments of financial position pertain to the cost related to the
BTO agreement with the Cebu Province entered into on March 26, 2012, Under the BTO agreement, the
Company is commutted to develop and construct a BPD Complex on the proparties owned by Cebu
Province located at Salinas, Lahug, Cebu City, and transfer the ownership of the BPFO Complex to the
Cebu Province upon completion, in exchange for the right to operate and manage the BPO Complex for
the entire tenm of the agresment and ils renewal (25 vears, renewahle for another 25 vesrs upon mutozl

agrecment of the parties).



Mumber of
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HWamberof  reserved dor
shures izsued oprioeE,
and outstanding wilrranls,
Humberod  as shown under COSVESion Mumber ol [Jirectors,
shares  related balance and other  sharesheld by  Officers aad
Tide af iz=ue authorized theet caption rights _ relnicd pariics Empioyes
Comman Shares 2000001, 160 1,163 426,648 = 1063426663 5
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CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC.
UNAPPROPIATED RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

DISTRIBUTION
DECEMBER 31, 2018
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, January 1, 2018 P854,307,418
wet income setually camned/realized during the period:
Net income during the period closed to retained eamings 1,410,282 325

Less: Non actualunrealized income net of tax
Equiry in net income of associatejoind venlure =
Linrealized foreiyn exchange gnin-net (except those
attributable 10 Cash and Cash cquivalbents)

Fair value adjustment (M2M gaing) -
Fair value adjustment of investment property resulting to

ganm -
Adjustenent due to deviation from PFREAGAAP-gain =

Other unrealized gains or adjustments o the retained
eamings as & result of certain transactions accounted for
under the PFRS —
Deferred tax asset that reduced the amount of income tax
EApEnse
Add: Nop-actual losses
Deprecintion on revaluation ncrement (nfter tax) =
Adjusiment due fo deviation from PEFRS/GAAP-l0ss =
L.oss on fair value adjustment of invastment property (after
tax] =
MNetl income aclually garned during the period 1, 410,282,325
Add (lessk:
Movement in deferred tax assers (47,046,135)
Dividend declurations during the period (312,946.403)
Appropriations af retained samings during the period { 1,500,000_000)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted
Decemhber 21, 2018 F404,497, 205




CYBERZONE PROPERTIES, INC.
(A Wholly Ovwned Subsidiary of Filinvest Land, Ine.)

SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
UNDER PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REFORTING STANDARDS

List of all effective Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), Philippine Accounting Standards
(PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commines
(IFRIC) elTective as at December 31, 2015:

Framewark ferike Preparation and Fresestation of Finascial Statements

Creceptusl Framework Phase A: Ubjectives and qualitative chancteristics

PFRSs Practice Stiement Mamsgement Commentary

Philippise Financial Reporting Standards

FFRS 1
(Hevided)

Firsi time Adoptica of Philippine quﬂ.ﬂ H:pumn;bund.uﬂ

Amgndeents 1o FERS 1 and PAS 27, 'L-a-il of &n Invesimani ima
Subsidiary, boiealy Cosarelled Entity or Assesaie
Amandments to PERS 1: Addiional Exemptiors for Firn-tizs
Adopters

Amendment ta FFRS 1: Limited Exemption froen Comperstive PFRS 7 |
Nizcloseres for Firc-time Adegters

I.-'l:nmd:'rz'l:lu-l:vu FFRS |: Severe lypesinflation and Removal of Fived
Drate for Fies: Time Adopiers

ﬁnmimﬂil o FFES |: Government Losns

Amerdmeris in FFRS 1: Rerrowing cogts

Amendmeets 10 FFES 1: Mzning of *Ffechve FFRS:

FFRS 2

Ehare-mesal Paymem

Amcnidmenis 1o PFFRS 2 \Eillnﬂ_{'mhm wred { mnesllniseem

Amznimenix o PFRS - Group Casbesetthed Shore-based Favment
Trnnl:m:l:ls

Arnlmrlmmla w PFRLS - Definitson of Yesting Condilios

FFR3 3
{Kevised)

I'FRS -I

Lhatiness Lol inatkong

Amendmenis o PFRS 3; Accounting for Contingees Constdarmion Ina
Husiness Coenbimaisoes

Amesdments 1 FFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joam Amaagements

o . N S S B S

[mrence {mirFacs

hmmﬁmwuh'.ﬁﬂudﬁrﬁ*lmﬁﬂhmunm-m

\FFHS 5

FFRS &

Mon-current Asset Held for Sale and Discontiozed Cperatioes

A:nrnd-lf.ll-&]‘l'ﬁ! Changes in Methods nl' D..lpm.ul

e

| Fuif-rmm Fou 3l F'l-ilulillml.'ll"'l-'l"l'rm'l Rmu.ln:l."i

FERS T

Financza! [nsanamers: Disclosures

ol BT B L S

Amendments 1o PAS 15 and PFRE 7: Reclassiflestion of Fimancisl
Asseis

Amendmenis o PAS 35 and PFRS ¥ Reclessificztion of Financial
Assels - Effective Date end Trassicion |

Amendments o FFRS 7: Improving Disciozwes sbout Finamelal
Instruments

Amendments to H'IE T Dischowores - Tnnlferl n!' F'unl.nr.'d Agmets




Amendments 1o FFRS 7. Distlogeees - Offeetting Fimancial At and
iI':i:|:|.|.|:|:il] Lizbilitizs

Amemdmeea 1o FERS 71 Servicing Contracts

Asendmert 1o PFIS 7: Applicability of the Amendments 0 PFES 7 i
Condezsed Interim Fmancial Sirtemenis

FFRS & Operacing Sepmoets

Amsndrsents to FFRS & Aggregatios af Operling Scgrenis and
Recontliateen of the Trtal of the Ropartabls Scpruats” Assels b the
Enfily"s Axscls

PFRS % Finmsecial Instrumsests: li'la_::li.l‘imh:-n and Measarenent (2009
WEREI)

Firamesal Insnaments
| PFFRS 10 Cordalidated Finastml Slalomenis
Amencmenis bo FFES 140, FFRE 12 ead PAS 27 levestsent Eaililes

FFRS 11 Jainl Amangemanis

Amenciments 1o FFES 11 Accounting for Acquisitioss of Inleneits in
Joint Opsratons

L T

PFR5 12 DFaclosun: of Tnbrests in Other Entitoes

L,

T T T T

Arszndmenis 1 PFRS 10, PFRS1Y end PAS2Y: Invesimeni Bnvales

Amendment b PFFRS 12: Clerification of tha Scopa of e Stamfsrd
{Par of Annual Teeprovemnonts in FFRSs 2014 « 2016 Cycle)

i

FFRS 13 Fadr Walue Measuremem

Amendments o PFRE |13 Shom=wesm Reccivahle erd Pavabiles

Amendments o FFRS 12: Foriflio FII.?I.T‘EI;'I -
(PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

FFRE 15 Revemue from Comirscts with Casiomers

Philippise Aeroumiing Slasdardy

Fas Fresentaton of Finaecial Sinsensents
{Revised} : ;
Arendment fo0 PAS 1: Capital Disclosares

Ansndesen PAS 12 Puleble Finanesal Instruments and Obligatisens
Asiging on Ligwidation

| Amendments o PAS 1. Preseezecion of lezns of Chher Comprelensive

lrzame

Amendmeni to PAS 11 Clarificasion of the Requiremesns for
Compacative Information

Amendmenis to PAS 17 Disclosure Inidetive

PAS2 | mventories

PAST Saskemmenl of Cash Fows

WJ o FAS T_!:-I_ﬂ_ﬂ-l:ﬂ_-nl’_i-ﬂh Flews, Dhachouns [nilsative
FAS § Accountieg Policies, Changes in Acooanting Fstimases and Erroes

Fas 10 Events afier the Eeperting Date
Fis 11 Lansuwuslioey Lodiaags

o N

PAS 12 Imcome Taxas




Amomimentin PAS 12 « Defemed Tex: Recovery af Usderlying Azwes

Amsmbmests o PAS 13 [nsomo Trats, Recogailioa of Deferred Tax o
Aguzts for Unreglized Losses
PAS 18 Prapeesty, Pland mnd Fagispmest o
Amindment to PAS 1§ Clasifireton of Servicing Equip=sent o
| Amendments 4o PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarificaton of Accepishle o
Methods of Depreciation and Ametizaiion
{PAS 17 Leases o
PAS 18 Hevenie W
(PAS 19 Emploves Benelits o
Amended) | etadinents o FAB 1¥: Actutriel Ging wod Losscs, Grovp Pl od 4
CHsclosures
| Amezndmeres (0 PAS 19: Dcfined Aenefit Plans: Fmployes o
Ceomiriburions
Amsnidment be PAS 19, Thsounl Rate: Regomal Marke: Eous o
A% In Accoseting, for Governmenl. Cinents end Disclosars of (evernmen o
Asssianie
PAS 21 | The Effests of Changea in Fersign Exchangs Rated o
Amendments Mot Investruent = 3 Nersign Operatioe o
IAS 13 Dorrowing Comis J'
[Hevised)
PAS 14 Relwied Farty Dischosumes o
[Heevied) < .
Amendments to FAS 24: Key Moaragement Persocmed o
FAS 14 Accouniing and Repomting by Retiremest Besedit Flans o
FAS 1Y Comsolideied and Separsie Financial Sistemenrs o
| PAS 21 Seperatc Fizancie! Siatceents "
{Amended) [ : ; T 3
Amendmerts 1o PAS 17, Dquity Method i Sepacate Ficancisl of
BEmements
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Financiel Soundnecy fndicolar

Below are the financial ratios that are relevant to the Company for the year ended December 31;

Financiel Katios 2018 2017
Current ratio Current assets

Cirrent liihilites 065 .36
Long-term debt 1o equity ratio Long-term debl 1.40 1.78

Equity
Niebt mtio Total leakilitics .65 068
Tatal assels

EBITDA to tatal interest paid EBITDA 3,51 309

Todal inlerest paid

Cuick asset ratio Current assels - Inveniories .65 1.35
Current labilithes
Solvency rutio Net income + Depresistion 013 0.11

l'ogal habilities

Innzrest covernge ratio ERIT I1.84 14.20
Interest expense

Met profit margin Nel income (60 0.6l
Ravenne
Return on equity Mgl income 0.21 0.21

Sharcholder's Equity



LFoup Sl
Below |4 4 map ihewing the relalzanship betwcen the Company and its parent commpany, uliimaie pasenl csmgusy and affilisees o of Docembar 1, 218
i GO, W

g
A ol Mlandian bi, Hiidy

[ S— ]

|n|—|n|—|—|—nq.|

L3
i T 3k —= Elq_r"l!‘!_iﬂ' | 1'—‘«@ = |
Sl—gie=E
FE S

[
: = (L=
== =] ===




